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Vision
The South African State Theatre is a national flagship that fa-
cilitates the arts and entertainment and encourages diverse cul-
tural provision; we seek to play a unique and vital role in the 
cultural life of the Nation, the Province of Gauteng and the City 
of Tshwane.

Mission
The South African State Theatre seeks to present the very best 
performing arts work from the local community, the province, 
the country and from around the world.

We seek to provide a programme in which our own produced 
work is of the highest standard and accessibility and comple-
ments the presented work.

We seek to provide development opportunities for emerging 
arts practitioners to learn and perform within the context of our 
programmes.

We seek to provide Audience Development programmes for 
new audiences to experience our work.

We seek to continue to develop our unique theatre facilities, up-
grading and maintaining them to support our artistic ambitions 
for excellence and our passion for welcoming audiences from 
across South Africa’s diverse population.

institutional Values
Our Core Values are:

• Openness and transparency
• Personal and organisational accountability.
• Freedom of expression
• Honesty and integrity
• Striving for excellence
• Sharing our skills to develop others
• Seeking to learn and improve
• Making the best use of our resources
• Adding value through partnership
• To make arts & culture accessible to all
• Create an environment of tolerance and understanding
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The South African State Theatre remains committed to 
the country’s pursuit for artistic development as a tool 

for economic and cultural development.

RepoRt of the ChaiRpeRson
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I am pleased to submit my first report as the Chairperson 
of The South African State Theatre Council along with my 
fellow Council members and the Chief Executive Officer. 
The 2011/12 year has been both exciting and challenging 
as we continue with the implementation of strategic and 
financial objectives set in the prior fiscal year. The South 
African State Theatre remains committed to the country’s 
pursuit for artistic development as a tool for economic and 
cultural development.

The South African State Theatre has partially achieved its 
strategic targets for the 2011/12 year and we look forward 
to achieving even more ambitious goals for the upcoming 
financial period.  With the support of the Department of Arts 
and Culture, The South African State Theatre continues to 
improve its talent and production, increase income sources, 
inspire the next generation of artists and promote diversity.

Financial Results

The South African State Theatre has managed to meet its 
financial objectives and increase its self-generated income 
with further increases projected through to 2015. 

systems and contRols

Systems upgrades are being made and controls put in 
place to monitor performance and make continuous im-
provements.

coRpoRate GoveRnance

Strengthening of corporate governance practices continues 
to be a key focus of the Council and Management; both are 
confident that progress is being made and risks are identi-
fied and mitigated in a timely and efficient manner. 

Revised stRateGic plan 2012 - 2015

We continue to periodically review the Strategic Plan and 
take actions consistent with meeting our core business 
objectives and responding to the changing business en-
vironment.  Monitoring and measurement techniques are 
employed to ensure compliance with regulatory bodies and 
enable The State Theatre to achieve its financial and stra-
tegic objectives for the 2012/13 year.

ms naledi Gallant
Chairperson
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Let me start off by thanking all our staff members for their 
passionate contribution towards our 2011/12 business 
efforts. It is also pertinent that we wish my predecessor, 
Xoliswa Nduneni, a prosperous future, and thank her sin-
cerely for her well acknowledged contribution to The South 
African State Theatre.

It is a great pleasure for me to acknowledge the astounding 
support we have received over the 2011/12 financial year 
from our principle, the Department of Arts and Culture. We 
are grateful and appreciative. We would like to acknowl-
edge support received from the Department of Infrastruc-
ture Development. 

The South African State Theatre remains an iconic insti-
tution in the national geography of like minded institutions 
and beyond. As an institution we remain steadfast in our 
resolve to deliver on our mandate and to offer our patrons a 

high quality entertainment solution. This we have pursued 
in all our endeavours during the past financial year. 

ouR Facility

Our facility remains in the forefront of the theatre industry. 
It has been in high demand throughout the year. The State 
Theatre caters greatly for artistic diversity and industry re-
quirements. We have done justice to our facility through 
splendid maintenance efforts. We are keen to improve our 
economical returns through the deliverance of a patron-
needs-based artistic delivery programme and an increase 
in the diversity of use. Our facility remains our highest in-
come generator. We are keen to mitigate this income risk 
we face, through improving income generation from our 
other income streams.  This objective will be one of our key 
drivers in our efforts going forward. 

RepoRt of the Chief eXeCUtiVe offiCeR
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mandate obliGations veRsus economi-
cal impeRatives 

This is a phenomenon that challenges all state owned 
theatres. We have not quite balanced our act with regard 
to servicing our mandate and making economical sense 
of our internally produced developmental work and artistic 
endeavours. This can be seen in varying attendance num-
bers, which clearly plague our results and development ef-
forts. We are working vigorously to remedy the situation.

the industRy 

The industry has expanded and is now clustered with in-
creased competition from the private sector. Patron de-
mands are more prominent. Pricing has become a sensitive 
issue due to the increase in competition as well as the cur-
rent economical realities. Patrons are spoilt for choice. Pay-
ing audiences remain traditional with very little additions. As 
part of our strategic intent we remain ambitious in our focus 
to increase paying audiences, improve audience diversity, 
and to retain our traditional paying audiences. We remain 
comfortable that we can achieve significantly on this front 
during 2012/13.

FundinG

We remain dependant on the Department of Art and Cul-
tures’ grant as our fundraising efforts have not been very 

successful over the past year. We are, however, gearing 
ourselves for change in our fund raising approach. We be-
lieve that we have created the right type of value proposi-
tions that will facilitate external funding going forward.

clean administRation

Greater effort and focus will be invested in the coming fi-
nancial year to secure a clean administration. Some of our 
operational processes, as well as our general approach to 
business, require re-direction. 

the immediate FutuRe

We are keen to take our rightful position in the market place. 
We are, after all, Africa’s greatest state funded theatre, and 
the pride of our nation.  We look forward to the immediate 
future in which we believe we will be fit for purpose.

dr Quinton simpson
Chief Executive Officer

The South African State Theatre remains an 
iconic institution in the national geography of like 

minded institutions and beyond.
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RepoRt of the aRtistiC DiReCtoR

2011/2012 was an exciting year. The quality, relevance and 
diverse nature of our programme were rewarded handsome-
ly by the theatre community during the 2011 Naledi Awards 
ceremony. During this period we worked with at least five 
hundred and nine (509) actors, dancers, and technicians. 

The South African State Theatre in Association with Sibikwa 
Arts Centre revived the highly energetic multi-award winning 
play “DET Boys High”, written and Directed by Smal Ndaba 
and Phyllis Klotz. The production was first staged in 1991 
but remains relevant to this day. “DET Boys High” raises per-
tinent educational issues. The 2011 revival, won the Naledi 
Award for Best Community Theatre – 2011.

We are also delighted to have partnered with Old Mutual 
Theatre on the Square to co-produce Gilbert and Sullivan’s 
“The Pirates of Penzance”. This light comic opera was over-
hauled by the dynamic Greg Homann who presented the 
production with five men and one pianist as opposed to the 
original production with a full orchestra and a cast of thirty 
plus. The artistic courage was rewarded with three Naledi 
Awards out of nine nominations. “The Pirates of Penzance” 
received three awards namely; Best ensemble/cutting edge, 
best comedy performance and best original choreography. 
The partnership ensured that the production transfers from 
one theatre to the other and as a result contribute towards 

the vision of touring productions and extending its life span 
and the employment term of artists.

“Rivonia Trial” made a comeback after a successful sold out 
season in 2010. It was a favourite with the critics and some 
have recommended it as a production that should be seen by 
all South Africans. This production written by Aubrey Sekha-
bi, Mpumelelo Paul Grootboom and Mandla Dube and Di-
rected by Aubrey Sekhabi takes us to the back rooms of Lil-
ies Leaf Farm in Rivonia, to the streets of Soweto and to the 
Palace of Justice in the heart of Pretoria where the trial took 
place.  Nelson Mandela, Walter Sisulu, Dennis Goldberg, 
Govan Mbeki, Ahmed Kathrada, Raymond Mhlaba, Andrew 
Mlangeni and Elias Motsoaledi were sentenced to life in 
prison and sent to Robben Island where they have spend 
many years in incarceration. It is a trial that tested their con-
viction and commitment to the struggle of South Africa. The 
production boasted an all star cast supported by a live band 
of the Moss Mogale unit. This production, presented by the 
South African State Theatre was rewarded with three Naledi 
awards out of ten nominations. The production won Naledis 
for Best Director: Play or musical, Best Performance by an 
actor in a lead role and best new South African script. 

On the receiving end, Pacts House production of “Tree Aan” 
won a Naledi for Best musical director/score and arrange-
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ment. “Tree Aan” captures the border wars. The story of 
what was happening whilst the majority of the country was 
fighting for freedom is relived. You begin to understand what 
the white youth went through during the conscription days 
and with great music and powerful dramatic scenes you are 
emotionally drawn in regardless of who you are. You share 
human stories.

The Rendezvous Theatre took center stage with the Jazz 
and African Music Night, Tshwane Comedy Night, Rock 
Nights, Stage Nites and Night of the Poet series. The Jazz 
and African Music Night features the Jazz and African music 
greats who inspire and perform with up and coming artists 
or artists who have recorded one or two albums. Legends 
like Vusi Mahlasela, Tlokwe Sehume, Zama Jobe, Selaelo 
Selota, Judith Sephuma, Nothembi Mkhwebane and Dr 
Sello Galane, are some of the artists who have headlined the 
programme. This programme is presented on Fridays three 
times a month. The Tshwane Comedy Night keeps the audi-
ence laughing twice a month on Saturdays whilst Thursdays 
twice a night was a time of heavy metal and powerful lyrics 
with Rock Nights. The youth are also catered for through the 
Stage Nites programme which is a hip hop line-up that fea-
tures some of the best hip hop artists in the country. Rhyme, 
rhythm and the word are let loose during the Night of the 
Poets where poets like Lififi Tladi, Kgafela oa Magogodi, 
Afurakan, Natalia Molebatsi and many other shared the word 
with our audiences. This programme profiles at least seven 
hundred and two (702) comedians, poets, musicians, sing-
ers and technicians with a platform to expose their talents to 
a greater audience. The Rendezvous programme provides 
high and diverse entertainment value and it is the kind of 
programme that will be retained for the next three years.

Mzansi Fela Festival! raised the bar and made the news on 
the 1st of December 2011 when artists, pensioners, people 
with disabilities, youth and children started the festival once 
again with a march from the Union Buildings to the State 
Theatre in commemoration of World AIDS day. The ten days 
arts and culture extravaganza made the news from 4pm right 
until 8pm that day. It was a beginning of a successful festi-

val which was full of international standard performances of 
music with Lira, Thandiswa and the Parlotones performing 
to full houses. The festival has become more diverse in its 
programming and slowly occupying its space in the hearts 
and minds of festival lovers in Tshwane and South Africa. 
This programme will be retained for many years to come 
as it attempts to become the premium festival in Gauteng 
(Tshwane).

We also presented seven productions under the 52 Seasons 
banner. The Programme which was supported by the Na-
tional Lotteries gives young directors an opportunity to pre-
sent South African works in the Momentum Theatre. In 2011 
we presented seven productions to admiring audiences, em-
ploying young artists from Tshwane and Gauteng. The pro-
gramme presented productions like Have you seen Zandile, 
Corner Street, Ngwana Wa mobu, Kudela Owaziyo, This is 
for Keeps, Op Soek na Kid Khumalo and Township Fever. 

Another notable contribution is our relationship with Tshwane 
University Of Technology for the fieldwork programme. In 
2011 we worked with at least nineteen community groups 
on a regular basis. The groups were mentored by graduates 
and final year students from Tshwane University of Technol-
ogy and presented South African Classics at the Mzansi Fela 
Festival. Two productions were chosen and given a lifeline 
by way of a production budget and a season at The State 
Theatre and National Arts Festival. Kea Moeketsane in col-
laboration with Ozone Felas will direct a production of “Sorry 
wrong number” and Miles Petzer in collaborations with Afri- 
Concept will direct and produce, “Horn of Sorrow”.

We look forward to an exciting 2012/2013 where we will fur-
ther develop our Rendezvous programme and strengthen 
Mzansi fela Festival. 

aubrey sekhabi
Artistic Director
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peRfoRmanCe statistiCs

RepoRt FoR yeaR by GenRe/type 2011/2012

Genre/type 
# 

perf.
tickets 

sold
comps 
issued

total 
sold & 
issued

sold 
tickets 
used

comps 
used

total 
attendance

Awards 1 0 1,313 1,313 0 595 595

Childrens Theatre 21 5,438 926 6,364 4,322 624 4,946

Comedy 45 3,420 1,460 4,880 3,201 810 4,011

Concert 39 21,783 5,218 27,001 17,699 3,287 20,986

Dance 51 9,382 5,437 14,819 6,851 3,495 10,346

Drama 157 14,735 4,809 19,544 11,948 3,242 15,190

Festival - Feast of the Clowns 1 138 6 144 137 0 137

Festival - Mzansi 59 3,548 2,017 5,565 3,206 1,726 4,932

Festival - Tshwane Youth Arts 1 791 141 932 591 120 711

Music 20 6,170 3,316 9,486 4,676 1,930 6,606

Musical 143 52,629 19,970 72,599 48,676 13,200 61,876

Opera 14 4,692 3,671 8,363 4,094 2,465 6,559

Student Production 6 981 504 1,485 819 263 1,082

Workshop 22 895 751 1,646 731 516 1,247

580 124,602 49,539 174,141 106,951 32,273 139,224
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Strategic 
objectives activities Key outputs performance 

Indicators
baseline 
2010/2011

2011-2012 
targets actual performance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 1:  DeVeLop anD MaIntaIn LonG-teRM paRtneRSHIpS

Develop 
new and 
maintain 
established 
partner-
ships for 
funding, 
program-
ming, 
building 
develop-
ment and 
mainte-
nance.

build and main-
tain structured 
partnerships 
with the Corpo-
rate Sector.

additional 
funding se-
cured to im-
prove service 
delivery.

MoU signed 
with corpo-
rate sector.

Fundraising 
Strategy in 
place.

by Sept 2011. 

achieved

1st MoU was signed with 
external partner and executed 
to the value of R 500,000.00.

MoU signed with ticket List 
to market SaSt productions 
to Visa entertainment portal 
subscribers.

Fundraising action plan and 
operational plan completed. 
Implementation of some the 
activities have started.

Fundraising policy has been 
developed & reviewed by the 
Fundraising Committee. It 
will be submitted to Council 
for final approval at the May 
meeting. Implementation 
thereafter.

2nd MoU with external partner 
to be signed to the value of  
R300,000.

build and main-
tain structured 
partnerships 
with national, 
provincial and 
Local govern-
ment.

additional 
fund-
ing secured 
for building 
development.

MoU signed 
with Depart-
ment of 
Infrastructure 
Develop-
ment.

not 
achieved. by Sept 2011.   

partly achieved

It has been difficult to get 
commitment from DID 
regarding infrastructure 
maintenance, upgrading and 
development.

Meetings held and medium 
term reports submitted to 
DaC for the upgrading and 
development of the SaSt 
infrastructure.

build and main-
tain structured 
partnerships 
with govern-
ment.

additional 
funding se-
cured for short 
and long-term 
maintenance 
of the building 
and theatres.

Funding 
received from 
DaC.

R10m 
received in 
2010/11.

by June 2011.

achieved.

R13.21 mil approved for 
2011/12

Several CapeX projects in 
progress. DaC is aware of 
the difficulty in finalising the 
partnership with DID, DaC 
indicated that they will fund 
the capital projects.

build relation-
ships with pre-
toria embassies 
by maintaining 
International 
programming 
throughout the 
year.

International 
programming 
increased 
through 
involvement of 
embassies or 
international 
cultural agen-
cies.

number of 
embas-
sies and 
international 
cultural agen-
cies involved 
in SaSt 
programme.

11 embas-
sies & High 
Commis-
sions based 
in pretoria 
partici-
pated.

11 embassies 
and international 
cultural agencies 
per annum.

partly achieved
Various embassies and High 
Commissions have used our 
theatres for their events and 
concerts.

Festival sponsorship docu-
ment finalised and request 
sent to the City of tshwane to 
participate in an international 
festival in 2013/14. this would 
assist in getting more embas-
sies & High Commissions on 
board.

Key FoCUS aRea 2:  InCReaSe DIVeRSIty oF pRoDUCtS

Developing 
greater 
diversity 
and range 
of product 
on our 
stages.       

Staging & 
Development 
of in-house pro-
ductions through 
commissioning
& buying.

Increased 
in-house 
productions 
by 10% per 
annum.

number of 
in-house 
productions.

27 In-house 
produc-
tions.

30 in-house 
productions
per annum.

partly achieved

y.t.D – 25 In-house produc-
tions.

the 5 weekly/monthly/year 
long Rendezvous theatre 
programme is part of the 
annual in-house productions’ 
calendar.

Increase the 
number of 
performance 
days of in-
house produc-
tions by 10% 
per annum.

number of 
performance 
days.

161 days.

Increase number 
of performance 
days to 177 days 
per annum.

not achieved

y.t.D – 161 days.

the opera and Drama 
theatres were closed for major 
upgrade and maintenance in 
January and February. 

the major upgrade has been 
finalized, there is need to 
look at an extended annual 
programme for February & 
March.
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Strategic 
objectives activities Key 

outputs
performance Indica-
tors

baseline 
2010/2011 2011-2012 targets actual performance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 2:  InCReaSe DIVeRSIty oF pRoDUCtS

Developing 
greater 
diversity 
and range 
of product 
on our 
stages.

Staging & 
Develop-
ment 
of in-house 
productions 
through 
commis-
sioning
& buying.

Increase 
the number 
of audi-
ences by 
10% per 
annum.

Audience figures for 
in-house produc-
tions.

83 289 
patrons.

Increase audience 
figure to 91 618 per 
annum.

not achieved

y.t.D – 55, 735

Re-structuring of the Marketing Dept 
was finalised mid-year. Critical is to 
find new and innovative ways of mar-
keting our productions to maximise 
income and exposure.

employ-
ment 
provided to 
actors.

number of actors 
employed to 
increase by 10% per 
annum.

100 actors.
Increase employ-
ment figures to 110 
actors per annum.

achieved
y.t.D – 142 ac-
tors/performers 
employed.

Higher target set for 2012/13 in order 
to create more jobs for actors and 
artists in general.

Develop-
ment of 
a regular 
Jazz, 
Comedy, 
Hip-Hop, 
poetry & 
Rock nites 
pro-
gramme.

number of products 
offered.

programme 
piloted suc-
cessfully in 
2010/11.
5 products 
offered.

5 productions to be 
offered in 2011/12.

achieved 
all 5 productions 
are offered per 
month.

except for Q4, only 
Jazz and Comedy 
was offered.

a consistent Rendezvous pro-
gramme will be implemented in order 
to create more jobs for artists.

number of per-
formance days to 
increase by 10% per 
annum.

total perfor-
mance days 
= 61

Increase number 
of days to 67 days 
per annum.

achieved

y.t.D – 84 perfor-
mance days.

a consistent Rendezvous pro-
gramme will mean more perfor-
mance days in the new financial 
year.

Audiences figures 
for
the Rendezvous 
theatre to increase 
by 10% per annum.

total number 
of patrons – 
6 077

Increase audience 
figures to 6 684 
patrons per annum.

partly achieved

y.t.D – 5, 656

We need to create new & innovative 
ways of marketing the various 
productions.

number of artists 
employed. new Indicator

Increase employ-
ment figures  by 
10% per annum.

y.t.D – 281

Increased 
hiring days 
for hire/co-
productions 
by 10% per 
annum.

number of perfor-
mance days
In the opera 
theatre.

opera - 261 
days

Increase number of 
performance days 
to  287 days per 
annum.

not achieved

y.t.D - 199 days

Major upgrade of the venues has 
been completed. 

We have also increased the number 
of productions in the opera theatre in 
the f/y in order to increase the number 
of performance days.

number of perfor-
mance days
in the Drama 
theatre.

Drama – 246 
days.

Increase number of 
performance days 
to 270 per annum.

not achieved

y.t.D – 193 days.

a few outside hire companies 
cancelled their seasons, citing 
lack of sponsorship. to avoid this, 
going forward will make sure when 
bookings are done, sponsorship is 
secured as well.
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Strategic 
objectives activities Key outputs performance 

Indicators
baseline 
2010/2011 2011-2012 targets actual performance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 2:  InCReaSe DIVeRSIty oF pRoDUCtS

Develop-
ing greater 
diversity 
and range 
of product 
on our 
stages.

Staging & 
Development 
of in-house 
productions 
through com-
missioning
& buying.

Increase audi-
ence figures
in the opera & 
Drama theatres.

number of audi-
ence figures to 
increase by 10% 
per annum.

opera theatre.

opera - 
82 075  
audiences.

Increase audience 
figures in the Opera 
theatre to 90 282 
audiences.

achieved

y.t.D – 90, 366 opera 
audiences.

In new f/y we have been able 
to scheduled more shows in 
the opera theatre.

Drama theatre.
Drama - 
32 014 
audiences.

Increase audience 
figures in the Drama 
audience to 35 215 per 
annum.

achieved

y.t.D – 36, 566 audi-
ences.

there is major focus to make 
sure that the Drama theatre 
maintains good level of produc-
tions and audiences.

productions from 
State theatre 
to tour to other 
theatres.

number of State 
theatre produc-
tions presented 
elsewhere in Sa. 

5 produc-
tions.

2 productions per 
annum.

not achieved

y.t.D – 0 tours.

target not achieved due to 
budget constraints (SaSt &  
other theatres).

productions from 
other producing 
theatres and Cul-
tural Institutions 
presented at 
State theatre.

number of 
productions from 
other Cultural In-
stitutions and pro-
ducing theatres at 
State theatre per 
annum.

2 produc-
tions per 
annum.

2 productions per 
annum.

achieved

y.t.D – 7 tours.

Key FoCUS aRea 3: InCReaSe DIVeRSIty oF aUDIenCe

Increasing 
the diver-
sity of our 
audience.

Securing 
the theatre 
truck from 
transnet for 
the Develop-
ment Depart-
ment, and 
raise funds 
from trusts, 
Foundations 
and other 
funders.

Development 
Department 
outreach and 
audience devel-
opment initiative.

Fund-raising for 
the Development 
Department from 
trusts, Founda-
tions and Lottery.

new 
indicator.

Securing of theatre 
truck plus funding & 
launch the truck by 
June 2011.

R250,000 to be raised 
by September 2011.

partly achieved.

negotiations were 
entered into with 
transnet, but they 
subsequently scaled 
down their arts 
Department and could 
not provide funding/
sponsorship but 
donated the theatre 
truck.

partnership developed with the 
Dept of Science & technology; 
possible utilisation of the truck 
in Kimberly in the new financial 
year.

project has been postponed 
until the announcement of the 
bid winners. 

Funding raised - R236 560 
from various projects – SKa 
and other projects.

Develop and 
Maintain a  
Community 
programme.

provision of 
access to theatre 
by pDI groups in 
LSM groups 2-6 
as both audience 
and participants.

Community 
programme 
developed and 
implemented.

10 Commu-
nity groups 
involved 
in the 
Fieldwork 
pro-
gramme.

Work with 20 Commu-
nity Groups in  2011/12.

partially achieved.
18 groups registered: 
10 first year and 
8 second year groups 
registered.

out of 18 registered, 2 have 
fallen off the programme and 
could not be replaced on time.

Secure 20 students 
enrolled at tUt as 
fieldworkers.

partially achieved.
10 tUt students &  
8 Graduates  con-
tracted.

10 Fieldworkers from tUt 
and 8 graduates have been 
contracted.

240 
Commu-
nity artists 
involved in 
workshops.

engage with 100+ 
community artists in de-
velopment workshops
per annum - 100 Com-
munity artists.

partially achieved.
y.t.D -  73 artists 
attended.

Going forward more community 
artists will be sourced so that 
those artists that fall off can be 
replaced with ease.
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Key FoCUS aRea 3: InCReaSe DIVeRSIty oF aUDIenCe

Increasing 
the diver-
sity of our 
audience.

Develop and Main-
tain a  Community 
programme.

provision of 
access to 
theatre by 
pDI groups in 
LSM groups 
2-6 as both 
audience and 
participants.

Community 
programme developed 
and implemented.

no Schools 
were 
engaged in 
2010/2011.

engage with 15 
schools in the 
Development 
programme.

not achieved.
the project  will be 
activated in the new 
financial year.

the schools project 
was linked to the 
transnet theatre 
truck grant that 
didn’t materialise.

Create regular 
programme for 
the Momentum 
theatre.

programme 3 
seasons.

number of productions 
presented at the Momen-
tum theatre.

7 produc-
tions.

present 8 produc-
tions in 2011/12.

achieved.

y.t.D – 
8 productions.

provide structured 
opportunities for 
new audiences to 
attend the theatres.

audience 
Development 
programme 
implemented 
to attract new 
audiences.

Develop a programme 
that contributes to educa-
tion – School/educational 
productions/set-works.

3 School 
set-works.

3 Set-work/educa-
tional productions.

achieved.

y.t.D – 3 Set-
works.

Introduce compli-
mentary tickets for 
new audiences for 
in-house produc-
tions.

tickets issued 

number of complimen-
tary tickets issued 

17 309 
(comps 
issued)

number of tickets 
issued to increase 
by 5%  to 18 174 
comps

achieved.

y.t.D – 23, 171.

Attendance figures 11, 530  
(attended)

number of 
people attending to 
increase by 10% to 
12 683 audiences 
per annum.

achieved.

y.t.D – 14, 718 
comps attended.

provide Festivals 
& events in-door & 
out-door.

Stage 
Festivals & 
event: Mzansi 
Festival, 
youth Day, 
and Women’s 
Day, etc.

number of Festivals.

number of days.
3 Festivals.

number of 
festivals.

12 days of Mzansi 
Fela Festival 
programming in 
2011/2012.

not achieved.

y.t.D – 1 Festival 
(Mzansi)
8 days of program-
ming with 29 
performances.

Female artists’ sea-
son is scheduled 
in the new financial 
year.

Maintain relation-
ship with external 
producers for 
presentation of 
productions and 
events.

productions 
in the opera 
& Drama 
theatres.

Hiring of opera and 
Drama theatres to pre-
sent work popular within 
the tshwane/Gauteng 
community.

14 produc-
tions per 
annum.

10 productions 
presented per 
annum at the thea-
tres by external 
producers.

achieved.

y.t.D - 26 outside 
productions.

provide a structured 
programme for the 
Rendezvous thea-
tre and diversify 
audiences.

Diverse 
audience at-
tracted in the 
Rendezvous 
theatre.

Development of the 
Rendezvous theatre au-
dience base, breakdown 
by genre: Jazz, Comedy, 
poetry, Hip-hop, Rock 
nites.

6 ,077

(also in 
objective 2).

Increase audience 
figures by 10% to 6 
685 per annum.

not achieved.

y.t.D – 5, 656.

new & innova-
tive marketing 
strategies will be 
implemented in the 
new financial year.
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Key FoCUS aRea 4:  pRoMote  enteRpRISe CULtURe 

Devel-
oping 
enterprise 
Culture 
through 
the organi-
sation.

Develop 
partnerships 
with the cor-
porate sector 
in developing 
management 
skills.

Manage-
ment skills 
and compe-
tency levels 
enhanced.

all HoD’s at-
tended training.

pFMa training 
done.

HoD’s to attend at 
least 1 training session 
per annum.

not achieved. Companies with interest could 
not be found.

encourage 
individual initia-
tive through the 
introduction of 
appraisal and 
performance 
management 
structures.

perfor-
mance 
manage-
ment and 
appraisal 
structure for 
all depart-
ments in 
place.

Signed perfor-
mance contracts.

Job descrip-
tions & 
performance 
contracts 
for HoD’s in 
place.

Introduce performance 
management and 
appraisal structure for 
middle management 
in 2011/12 and the 
whole organisation by 
2012/13.

achieved. performance contracts done.

training of HoD’s 
on staff appraisal.

all HoD’s to be trained 
by april 2011. achieved. training done.

Key FoCUS aRea 5:  MaXIMISe InCoMe

Increase 
Self-
Generated 
Income.

Raise sponsor-
ship income by 
building rela-
tionships with 
the corporate 
sector.

additional 
funding for 
develop-
ment, 
productions 
and special 
projects 
secured.

Sponsorship 
Income raised. R250 000

2011/12 – R2 million
2012/13 – R3 million
2013/14  - R5 million

not achieved.

no sponsorship 
income.

Sponsorship and marketing 
think tank to be created. (e.g 
adverting agency, corporate 
businesses). Council has ap-
proved creation and thin tank at 
March 2012 meeting.

Fundraising Strat-
egy implemented 
effectively.

Fundraising 
Strategy 
developed.

Quarterly progress 
Reports partially achieved.

Fundraising Committee has 
been established and 2 meet-
ings held. Strategy reviewed 
and approved by Fundraising 
Committee and action plan to 
be implemented

Drive sales for building wraps; 
additional proposals to be done.  

production fund-
ing raised from 
government & 
private sector.

R6,166,350, 
this was made 
possible 
because of the 
2010 World 
Cup.

R6,166,350
not achieved.

y.t.D –R2, 249, 890

baseline was too high & 
difficult to match.

Maximise 
income by 
making ef-
fective use of 
property port-
folio through 
rentals.

Rental 
income 
increased 
in line with 
approved 
rates.

% Increase in 
rental income 
from baseline:
5,6% per annum - 
Kilnerton.

R1, 125, 995 
(excluding 
electricity).

Kilnerton rental Income 
to increase to
R1, 195,080 per 
annum.

achieved.

y.t.D – R1,281, 686

10,5% per annum 
- Office Blocks. R 732, 669

Office Blocks income to 
increase to R 991,200 
per annum.

partly achieved.

y.t.D – R762, 119

Some tenants gave up their 
offices due to financial problems. 
new tenants moving in april 2012.

70% per annum – 
theatres.

R2, 530,028 
(theatre rental 
+ % income).

theatre income to in-
crease to R3, 565,146
per annum.

partially achieved.

y.t.D – R3, 326, 943

Some productions were can-
celled. both opera and Drama 
theatres were dark in January 
& February due to scheduled 
maintenance.



PAGE 18 • State Theatre              Annual Report • 2012

Log In

Strategic 
objectives activities Key outputs performance 

Indicators baseline 2010/2011 2011-2012 targets actual perfor-
mance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 5:  MaXIMISe InCoMe

Increase 
Self-
Generated 
Income.

Maximise income by 
making effective use 
of property portfolio 
through rentals.

28% per an-
num - Func-
tion Room.

R 133, 345

Function Room 
income to increase 
to R 99,900 per 
annum.

achieved 
y.t.D – 
R128, 449.

5.5% per 
annum - 
Restaurants.                                                              

R 705,483                                                                         

Restaurants 
income to increase 
to R574, 658 per 
annum. 

partially 
achieved.

y.t.D – 
R514, 408.

Income was negatively 
affected by a tenant moving 
out and another not paying 
rent.

Increase hiring 
opportunities of 
costume, decor and 
props by developing 
and maintaining a 
range of stock.

Increased 
Decor and 
Wardrobe 
income.

6 % Increase 
in Decor and 
Wardrobe 
income from 
baseline.

R1, 344,406

Increase Decor 
and Wardrobe  
income by 5% to 
R1, 418,348 per 
annum.

achieved.

y.t.D – 
R1, 597, 193.

Increase ticket 
sales for In-house 
productions through 
effective implementa-
tion of the Marketing 
Strategy.

Increased box 
Office income.

Increase in 
Box Office 
income from 
baseline.

R2, 695,446

Increase box of-
fice income to 
R3 million per 
annum.

partially 
achieved.

y.t.D – 
R2, 130, 818.

need to review Marketing & 
sales strategies and consist-
ently monitor ticket sales & 
effectiveness.

Raise parking 
prices by undertak-
ing annual survey of 
competitor prices.

parking 
income 
increased 
based on 
competitor 
prices.

% Increase 
in parking 
income from 
baseline.

R9, 423, 463

*2010/2011 baseline 
revised in line with 
audited figures.

Increase parking 
income by 10% to  
R10, 281, 207 
per annum.

partially 
achieved.

y.t.D – 
R10, 074, 364.

need to programme more 
shows in Feb & March to 
increase evening parking 
income.

Increase spending 
at Front of House 
through effective 
implementation of 
the customer care 
strategy.

Increased 
Front of 
House 
income.

% Increase 
in Front 
of House 
income from 
baseline.

R1, 499, 254

*2010/2011 baseline 
revised in line with 
audited figures. 
Includes Satchmo’s 
income.

Increase Front of 
House income by 
6% to  R1, 502,405 
per annum.

achieved.

y.t.D – 
R1, 720, 192.

Retail strategy and lines to 
be relooked. new pricing 
strategy to be looked into in 
the new financial year.
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Key FoCUS aRea 6:  DeVeLop anD MaIntaIn bUILDInGS 

ensure 
long-term 
future for 
our building 
and other 
assets.

Conduct a feasibil-
ity study on the 
development of 
the State theatre’s 
property including 
Kilnerton.

architec-
tural/precinct 
development 
study of 
State thea-
tre assets.

Funding secured 
for all CapeX 
needs.

Commission 
report for all 
CapeX needs 
submitted to 
DaC.

Report to be imple-
mented by December 
2011.

achieved.

three year capital 
needs request, sub-
mitted to DaC. 

R13.21 mil has been 
approved for 2011/12. 
Received to date 
R13,21mil.

Commission 
report on use of 
Kilnerton property.

not achieved.

Feasibility study to be 
conducted by December 
2011 and Commission 
report to be ready by 
March 2012.

on hold.

on hold due to possi-
ble utilisation by DaC. 
If not, SaSt will look 
at medium-term plans 
in order to maximise 
income.

plan and execute 
major upgrade of 
stage equipment 
and facilities in the 
Drama theatre.

Theatre fit for 
purpose for 
next decade.

Drama theatre 
stage equipment 
and facilities 
upgraded.

tender to be 
awarded in 
March. 

by  September 2011 achieved. Upgrading completed 
in February.

Investigate and 
undertake capital 
feasibility study 
on rationalising 
costume storage to 
create opportunity 
for more parking 
space.

at least 70 
parking bays 
created.

Commission 
study on creation 
of additional park-
ing space.

parking station 
at capac-
ity in 2010/11, 
proven poten-
tial to sell more 
space.

Study commissioned by 
June 2011, completed 
by Sept 2011.

achieved.

potential income R403 
200 p/a. Steel work 
has been completed. 
Castings for woodwork 
in progress.

Maintain the 
theatre buildings 
by implementing a 
structured mainte-
nance programme 
to ensure public 
and staff safety and 
compliance with 
statutory responsi-
bilities.

Maintenance 
programme 
that compli-
ance with 
statutory 
regulations.

Maintenance 
programme 
effectively imple-
mented.

Implemented in 
Jan 2010.

Quarterly progress re-
ports on implementation 
of the programme

achieved
Maintenance 
programme progress 
report

time taken to 
attend to main-
tenance issues 
related to health 
and safety.

achieved.

98% of maintenance 
issues related to health 
and safety dealt with in 
24 hours.

achieved.

Q4 – 17 Health 
and Safety Issues 
reported. all issues 
dealt with within 24 
hours.

y.t.D – 
49 emergencies. 
all issues dealt with 
within 24 hrs.

all issues dealt with 
within 24 hours.

Man hours spent 
on emergency 
repairs.

17 Hours.

Man hours spent on 
emergency repairs 
reduced by 5% per 
annum over the next 2 
years. target 2011/12 - 
16 Hrs.

not achieved.

Q4 – 26 hrs/15 min 
spent on emergency 
repairs.

y.t.D – 49 hrs/20 
min spent on emer-
gency repairs.

Building & equipment 
is 30 years old.  Un-
foreseen breakdowns 
will happen. 
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Key FoCUS aRea 6:  DeVeLop anD MaIntaIn bUILDInGS 

ensure 
long-term 
future 
for our 
building 
and other 
assets.

Maintain the theatre 
buildings by imple-
menting a structured 
maintenance pro-
gramme to ensure 
public and staff 
safety and compli-
ance with statutory 
responsibilities.

Man hours 
spent on 
scheduled 
maintenance.

480 Hours.

Scheduled Main-
tenance hours per 
annum  - target: 
600 hrs.

not achieved.

y.t.D – 1 245 
Hours spent 
on scheduled 
maintenance.

Building and Equipment is 
old so it takes longer to repair 
and to source the right spares 
at competitive prices.

Health and 
Safety audit 
conducted 
annually.

november 2011. partially 
achieved.

Tenders requested for H&S 
audit on air-con. Service pro-
vider identified. Appointment 
in process.

Minimised pro-
gramme disruption 
due to breakdown 
of equipment and 
plant which results 
in performance 
cancellation.

95% of all 
scheduled 
programmes 
staged 
without delay, 
interruption 
or incident.

no cancella-
tions.

no cancellations. 
95% of all sched-
uled programmes 
staged without 
delay, interruption 
or incident.

achieved 
-100%.

no cancellations due to 
breakdown.

enhance public 
safety in the building 
and surrounds by 
implementing a 
security plan.

Secure environ-
ment provided to 
customers and 
staff.

Security plan 
devel-
oped and  
implemented 
effectively.

new Indicator. by July 2011. achieved.
Security plan developed 
and approved by technical 
Director.

progress 
Reports on 
implementa-
tion.

new Indicator.

Monthly progress 
reports on 
implementation of 
Security plan.

partially 
achieved.

Implementation will take place 
in the new financial year.

number of 
incidents 
reported 
on theft, 
assault, 
Malicious 
damage to 
property and 
injury on 
duty.

10 Incidents 
reported.

Reduce Incidents 
reported by 50% 
annually
target 2011/12 – 
5 incidents.

not achieved.

y.t.D – 
14 Incidents   
Reported:

• 4 theft.
• 10 I.o.D.

new cameras to be installed 
on key floors.

General Health and Safety 
audit to be done in the finan-
cial year and implemented 
thereafter.
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Key FoCUS aRea 7:  pRoVIDe eXCeLLent CUStoMeR CaRe 

provide 
excellence 
in our care 
for our 
customers. 

provide 
customer care 
training to all 
staff.

training 
programmes 
delivered 
to improve 
customer care 
awareness 
and skills.

Customer care 
training attended 
by all staff.

FoH staff at-
tended  training.

annual training for Front 
of House staff. achieved.

Customer care training 
combined with orienta-
tion training of new 
recruits with a written 
exam took place in 
March 2012.

all other staff trained by 
June 2011. achieved. Customer Care training 

took place in May 2011.

Develop and 
implement 
customer care 
policy and 
procedures.

Compliance 
with customer 
care policy and 
procedures.

Customer care 
policy and  
procedures 
implemented by 
all HoD’s.

Customer 
care policy 
developed.

Customer care policy 
to be adopted and pro-
cedures developed 
and implemented by all 
HoD’s by May 2011.

partly achieved.

Customer Care policy 
and procedures com-
pleted and approved. 
Implementation to follow 
in the next financial year.

Corporate 
membership 
scheme estab-
lished  as part 
of fundraising.

10 Corporate 
scheme mem-
bers. 

not achieved by December 2011. not achieved.

Sales Manager and 
Corporate Sales Rep to 
be appointed in the new 
financial year.

ensure 
consistency 
branding of all 
State theatre 
productions, 
both hires 
and own 
productions by 
implementing 
a marketing 
strategy.

Increased 
visibility, recog-
nition and 
publicity of the 
State theatre 
productions & 
brand.

Market-
ing strategy 
implemented & 
free publicity ob-
tained calculated 
in Rand value.

R10,487,915.68
Increase free publicity 
by 10% to R11, 536,707 
per annum. 

partly achieved.

y.t.D – 
R8, 798, 875
free airtime.

to create additional 
publicity opportunities & 
maximise coverage of 
SaSt, a junior publicist 
post will be created to 
deal with work load.

Conduct audi-
ence surveys 
to assess 
brand satisfac-
tion levels

audience 
brand satisfac-
tion level 
increased and 
monitored.

number of sur-
veys conducted

baseline cus-
tomer survey 
conducted in 
June. 

2 surveys per annum.
achieved 

y.t.D -  951 

this is an on-going pro-
cess done on a quarterly 
basis.

% increase in 
audience satis-
faction level.

external 
consultants to 
assist as from 
2011-2012

Increase 10% year 
on year with level of 
audience satisfaction 
record.

not achieved

Research to be 
conducted and 
further analysis to be 
completed. 

automated audience 
measurements to 
be implemented via 
Computicket scanners, 
investigating a system 
with key pads at strate-
gic points to measure 
customer satisfaction.

Develop 
data bases 
and other elec-
tronic commu-
nication tools 
to increase 
effectiveness 
of communi-
cation with 
customers.

Improved 
communication 
with customers 
and potential 
customers.

Interactive 
website.

Revamped 
website by end 
March 2010.

Interactive website oper-
ating by april 2011.

achieved.

Interactive site 
completed and in 
operation.
Daily monitoring and 
constantly strive to 
offer accurate informa-
tion.
Develop and Digital 
Marketing Strategy 
and train staff in digital 
media techniques.

new Junior publicist to 
deal with all electronic 
media.

More staff trained to 
manage SaSt Website 
to reduce turnaround 
time. 

policy regarding website 
additions included in 
Marketing policies and 
procedures. 
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Key FoCUS aRea 7:  pRoVIDe eXCeLLent CUStoMeR CaRe 

provide 
excel-
lence in 
our care 
for our 
custom-
ers.

Develop 
data bases 
and other 
electronic 
communica-
tion tools to 
increase ef-
fectiveness 
of communi-
cation with 
customers.

Improved 
communication 
with customers 
and potential 
customers.

number of 
SMS’s per 
annum.

18 457 SMS’s.

Increase SMS 
database by 10% per 
annum from baseline.
2011/2012– 20 302 
SMS’s.

achieved.

y.t.D  - 20 305 
SMS’s inclusive of  
hidden sms system 
on the website 2834.

More aggressive media strategy to 
be implemented in the new financial 
year to increase the database.

number 
of e-mails 
database 
per annum.

86 440 e-mails.

Increase e-mail 
database by 10% per 
annum from baseline. 
2011/2012 - 95 084 
emails.

not achieved.

y.t.D – 12 959 
e-mails.

Decreased due to opt out option and 
natural attrition. 

Digital Marketing Strategy required 
to build database.

number 
of website 
visits per 
annum.

84 592 Visits

Increase website hits 
by 20% per annum 
from baseline 
2011/2012 – 101, 510 
visits

achieved.

y.t.D – 111, 207 
visits

number of 
friends on 
Facebook & 
twitter.

Facebook: 2227
twitter: 312

Increase number by 
20% from baseline.

Facebook: 2 672 
twitter: 374

partially achieved.

y.t.D – Facebook:  
2, 632.

achieved.

y.t.D twitter:  490 
Followers.

both have slightly increased, 
however we need to focus on more 
interactive digital strategy and 
engage with friends and users more 
actively.

Key FoCUS aRea 8:  CoMpLIanCe WItH  LeGISLatIon 

ensure 
Compli-
ance 
with all 
legislation 
and gov-
ernment 
regula-
tions.

Implement 
financial 
policies and 
procedures 
in line with  
pFMa.

Compliance 
with pFMa.

Unqualified 
audit report.

Next financial 
year. No qualification. achieved. action plan to address auditor-

General’s findings is in place.
Minimal issues 
raised under 
emphasis of 
matter in the 
external audit 
Report.

number 
of issues 
raised as 
emphasis of 
matter.

Next financial 
year.

not more than 10 
emphasis of matters 
per annum.

achieved.

2 Issues reported.

Repeat audit 
queries elimi-
nated.

number of 
repeat find-
ings raised.

Next financial 
year.

No repeat findings. 
progress Report 
compiled on queries 
that cannot be 
addressed over 1 
financial period.

not achieved.

2 repeat findings 
raised under empha-
sis of matter.

1. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
finding – condonement letter on 
this matter to be written to DaC 
for treasury’s attention.

2. Restatement of corresponding 
figures – Final presentation of 
financial statements to be referred 
to technical experts for review 
prior to submission to auditor-
General.
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Key FoCUS aRea 8:  CoMpLIanCe WItH  LeGISLatIon 

ensure 
Compli-
ance 
with all 
legislation 
and gov-
ernment 
regula-
tions.

Submit 
financial and 
non-financial 
information to 
relevant Stake-
holders within 
the prescribed 
timeframes.

Compliance 
with pFMa 
Reporting 
timeframes.

Quarterly 
performance  
submission  to 
DaC.

Submission 
deadlines 
met.

Quarterly - a month after 
every quarter. achieved.

budget sub-
mission DaC.

Submission 
deadlines 
met.

28 February - annually.

achieved.

budget submitted on the 
28th February 2011.

annual report 
submission to  
DaC.

Next finan-
cial year. 31 august - annually.

achieved.

Awaiting final audit by 31 
July 2011. 

Financials 
submission to 
aG.

Next finan-
cial year. 31 May  - annually.

achieved.

Financial report submit-
ted to aG for audit on 
31st May 2011.

Implement Hu-
man Resources 
policy and pro-
cedures in line 
with the basic 
Conditions of 
employment 
act and Labour 
Relations act.

Compliance 
with basic 
Conditions 
of employ-
ment act.

Monthly 
Compliance 
report.

Monthly 
Compliance 
report

Monthly Compliance 
report.

achieved.

Discussed as part of the 
Monthly HoD Report.

Forms part of the HoD report.
Employment Equity Report 
– submitted to Labour once 
in two years. Latest Report 
submitted in January 2011. 
the next submission will be in 
Jan 2013. 

Compliance 
with Labour 
Relations 
act.

number of 
Industrial 
disputes re-
solved.

5 Industrial 
disputes 
were 
reported.

Limit  Industrial disputes 
to  5 per annum.

achieved.

• 1 Labour court case 
(pending).

• 1 CCMa (fell off).
• 1 Dismissal (fell off).
• 1 Demotion (fell off).

y.t.D – all cases re-
ported have been ruled 
in favour of SaSt except 
for the Labour court case 
which is still pending.

time taken 
to resolve 
disputes.

new indica-
tor.

Disputes revolved timely 
in line with the Human 
Resources policy.

n/a - Refer to case 
mentioned above.

the above mentioned cases 
cannot be measured. only 
grievances and cases related 
to formal disciplinary hearing 
can be measured which have 
not been reported.

Implement the 
employment 
Equity plan in 
line with the 
employment 
Equity Act.

Compli-
ance with 
employment 
Equity Act. 

employment 
Equity targets 
fully met.

90% of 
targets 
achieved 
– employ-
ment oppor-
tunities not 
created for 
people with 
disabilities.

Monthly progress report 
on Implementation of 
the Employment Equity 
plan.

partly achieved.

Employment Equity Charter 
approved by the HR Commit-
tee. Employment Equity Plan 
to be developed in the next 
f/y and then reported on a 
monthly basis.
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Strategic 
objectives activities Key outputs performance 

Indicators
baseline 
2010/2011

2011-2012 
targets

actual 
performance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 9:  DeVeLop anD tRaIn StaFF

Value and 
develop 
our staff to 
enhance 
their skills 
base.

Develop and 
implement a train-
ing strategy that 
will enhance the 
skills of our staff 
base.

Improved 
competency 
levels.

training Strate-
gy implemented 
in line with the 
training plan. training 

Strategy 
Developed.

april 2011. partly achieved.
Strategy approved by the new HR Com-
mittee. training plan was approved & 
implemented.

Monthly 
progress report 
on implementa-
tion.

Monthly progress 
reports on imple-
mentation of the 
training plan.

achieved. progress is being reported in the monthly 
HoD reports.

Developing 
employee awards 
scheme to 
recognise staff 
performance.

Investors 
in people 
award 
scheme.

employee 
awards policy 
developed and 
implemented.

not 
achieved.

policy to be 
developed and 
implemented by 
December 2011.

partly achieved.

policy developed and approved by the 
new HR committee.

To be implemented in the next financial 
year.

Internal Commu-
nications Strategy 
developed and 
implemented to 
improve commu-
nication within the 
organisation.

Improved 
communica-
tion within 
the organi-
sation

Internal Com-
munications 
Strategy docu-
mented and  
implemented

not 
achieved.

Development  - 
June 2011. achieved. Internal Communications Strategy 

developed and approved.

Implementation – 
october 2011. not achieved. To be implemented in the next financial 

year.

Key FoCUS aRea 10:  enHanCe CoSt eFFICIenCy WItHIn tHe oRGanISatIon

plan 
effectively 
to ensure 
cost base 
of organi-
sation is 
efficient.

Install software 
for venue hire and 
planning.

Decreased 
expenditure 
on overtime 
as a result 
of better 
planning 
of venue 
utilisation.

Venue hire and 
planning soft-
ware operating 
effectively.

new 
indicator.

Software 
installed by Sep-
tember 2011.

not achievable 
until funding is set 
aside.

project abandoned due to lack of funds.

overtime 
costs on Stage 
Services.

R608, 904

Reduce overtime 
costs by 10% per 
annum. 

2011/2012 – 
R787, 992 

achieved
Stage Services  
overtime costs.

y.t.D – R341, 242

This figure 
includes y.t.D 
overtime costs 
recovered which 
amount to 
R51, 500.

Monthly over-
time reports.

new 
indicator.

Monthly reports 
on overtime 
spent vs. plans.

achieved.

Monthly Income and expenditure Report/
Income Statement sent to the Stage 
Services HoD by Finance which covers 
overtime spent vs budget information.



PAGE 25 • State Theatre              Annual Report • 2012

Strategic 
objectives activities Key out-

puts
performance 
Indicators

baseline 
2010/2011 2011-2012 targets actual performance                    Variance Report

Key FoCUS aRea 10:  enHanCe CoSt eFFICIenCy WItHIn tHe oRGanISatIon

plan ef-
fectively to 
ensure cost 
base of or-
ganisation 
is efficient.

ensure col-
lection and 
monitoring of 
performance 
Information 
across all 
departments 
of the organi-
sation to en-
able effective 
measurement 
of progress 
against plans.

Improved 
organisa-
tional per-
formance 
Manage-
ment. 

performance 
information 
collected by all 
departments 
and progress 
reported 
against plans.

performance 
information 
collected and 
reported on 
a Quarterly 
basis.

all departments 
report perfor-
mance information 
on a Quarterly 
basis.

achieved.

a new performance Information 
policy drafted and to be approved by 
Council in the new financial year and 
implemented thereafter.

MIS system 
is in place to 
make sure that 
all statistics 
are captured 
and reported 
as required.

MIS system is 
being imple-
mented as a 
pilot project 
by Front of 
House.

MIS to be fully 
implemented by 
FoH, Marketing & 
HR departments 
by June 2011.

partially achieved.

Currently, only Front 
of House is utilising 
MIS as a pilot project.

MIS to be discontinued at end of this 
year. 

Computicket to sponsor all hand held 
scanners and software for reporting 
purposes.

% of depart-
mental targets 
achieved.

50% of depart-
mental targets 
were met in 
2010/2011.

90% + of depart-
mental targets be-
ing met in 2011/12 
and improving 
thereafter.

not achieved.

out of 87 targets set 
for 2011-2012:

52% of the targets 
have been achieved.
26% - partly achieved.
22% - not achieved.

overall score of 78%.

Main targets which are core to the or-
ganisation have either been achieved 
or partly achieved. the targets that 
have not been achieved is a result 
of budget constraints, including old 
equipment & building as the turn 
around time to fix  things is much 
longer than anticipated.

objectives and activities have been 
streamlined & reduced to make ac-
counting much easier.

Implement 
a new 
Moonlighting 
policy which 
describes 
conditions for 
employees 
working 
outside of 
organisa-
tion, defines 
procedures for 
freelance work 
and defines 
ownership 
of IpR and 
other rights for 
work financed 
by the State 
theatre.

Compliance 
with moon-
lighting 
policy and 
procedures. 

new 
moonlighting 
policy and 
procedures 
developed and 
implemented.

Consulting 
with manage-
ment, staff and 
Council on 
current draft 
documenta-
tion.

new policy and 
procedures in 
place by May 
2011.

partially achieved.

the draft Moonlighting policy to be 
amended in line with the comments 
that have been received from the 
review process. 
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Key objective
2011/2012

R’000
2012/2013

R’000
2013/2014

R’000
income
state contribution
Operational 37,109 38,978 41,316

Non-exchange Revenue 10,263 10,878 11,530

Fundraising, Marketing & Other 23,502 24,912 26,406

Other Income 953 1,010 1,070

total income 71,827 75,778 80,322

state Funded expenditure
Artistic 11,306 11,984 12,703

Front of House & Applause 3,395 3,599 3,815

Security & Transport 5,877 6,229 6,602

Parking 1,107 1,173 1,243

Wardrobe Hiring & Décor 2,413 2,558 2,711

Stage Services 6,714 7,116 7,542

Marketing 3,672 3,892 4,125

Human Resources 1,540 1,632 1,730

Development 1,182 1,253 1,328

Administration 13,174 13,964 14,801

Facilities 2,983 3,162 3,351

Maintenance 12,059 12,782 13,548

Upgrade of Facility 5,786 6,133 6,500

Capital Expenditure 619 298 323

total 71,827 75,778 80,322
Surplus / Deficit 0 0 0

fUnDing ReqUiRements peR key objeCtiVe
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buildinGs
2011/2012

R’000
2012/2013

R’000
2013/2014

R’000
major capital Works 
Building development feasibility studies State Theatre and Kilnerton 300  250 250

Drama stage equipment upgrade 400 3400 800

Ongoing programme to replace and repair passenger lifts in building 3800 3400 3800

IT Development 150 150 200

Radio and paging system 0 120 120

Replacement of Stage lighting equipment 1500 1500 800

Repairs and Renovations
Air conditioning cooling tower fans to be serviced 120 80 60

Replacement of suspended ceilings 120 140 160

Replace and repair all damaged and missing aluminium profiles from 
window frames 150 150 150

Replacement of air conditioning tower sand filters 60 80 120

Cleaning State Theatre buildings on outside 250 200 200

Replace stand by pumps for sewage and storm water 150 150 150

new buildings
Kilnerton domestic water piping system 180 100 80

Kilnerton buildings & roofs 500 500 500

additional equipment Requirements
Broadcast quality camera and editing equipment and software 100 90

Equipment to enable production of CD’s of State Theatre works 50

total 7 780 10 160 7 190

ReseRves 2008/2009 2009/10
sources
Accumulated Funds / Reserves at beginning of the year 772 39,175

Prior year error 38,190

Restated balance 38,962

Net Surplus / Deficit 212 -3106

Funds / Reserves at the end of the year 39,175 36,068

Capital inVestments ReqUests & ReseRVes
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2006/07
audited
R’000

2007/08
audited
R’000

2008/09
audited
R’000

2009/10
audited
R’000

income
State contribution 26,177 30,005 30,942 33,301

Fundraising, marketing and other 18,875 18,682 19,650 22,488

Other Income 816 1,574 1,923 2,701

total income 45,869 50,262 52,515 58,490

state Funded eXpendituRe
Admin Support Service & Other/Productions 13,012 13,939 14,999 20,218

Depreciation 6,125 5,564 4,821 4,511

Front of House/Theatres 1,129 818 719 964

Maintenance & refurbishments 2,039 2,937 3,983 3,094

Marketing 1,009 441 166 2,533

Staff costs 16,542 21,060 23,440 26,095

Utilities 2,825 3,191 4,177 4,181

total expenditure 42,591 47,950 52,305 61,596

Net Surplus/Deficit 3,278 2,311 210 -3106

oVeRView of past peRfoRmanCe anD spenDing tRenDs
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oRganisational management

the south african state 
theatre council

Chief Executive Officer
Xoliswa Nduneni

chief Financial 
Officer

Arthur Mokoena

marketing director
Elsabe Booyens

technical director
Gert Viljoen

Finance
Sylvia Lavenson

it
Stuart Mullen

stage services
Leon Barnard

maintenance
Japie Maritz

décor & Wardrobe
Bronwen Lovegrove

marketing & pR
Lindelwa Mahlabe

sales manager
Vacant

Front of house
Kobus Lodewyckx

Facilities: planning 
and security

Rejoice Motshwene

parking
Ellen Mashiane

Senior Management
Team

artistic director
Aubrey Sekhabi

productions
Thabiso Qwabe

development
Ntshuxeko Manganye

human Resources
Millicent Mopayi
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human ResouRces stRateGy

• To provide Human Resource Management, Develop-
ment and Employment Relations to The State Theatre 
employees by complying with all Statutory Bodies un-
der the Labour Law.

• To monitor and report on the implementation of the 
strategy in order to equip the State Theatre’s Council 
and Management with the tools to manage its human 
resources in a cost effective manner.  

puRpose oF human ResouRces stRateGy

• We aim to value our staff by providing them with the 
training, facilities and management to undertake their 
work to a standard of excellence and endeavour to 
maintain the value of salaries and benefits against the 
cost of living. 

• We aim to plan effectively and ensure that the cost 
base of organisation is efficient.

stRateGic human ResouRces objective

• Minimise Industrial disputes.
• Compliance with all Statutory Bodies under the Labour 

Law.
• Recruitment – ensuring recruitment processes identify 

the best person for the post.
• Ensure all staff are trained in Customer Care.
• Substantially improve communications within the or-

ganisation.
• Develop a learning culture within the organisation.
• Administer and manage the organisation with the high-

est level of skill and care.
• During the period of this business plan we will secure 

an Investors In People or other nationally recognised 
awards for good practice in the employment, training 
and motivation of staff.

• To continue the transformation of the organisation’s 
staffing of competent individuals.

Key activities description target for full implementation

Internal Communications Strategy in 
partnership with Marketing Depart-
ment.

Strategy document outlining meth-
ods for communication within the 
organisation. Publication of internal 
staff newsletter.

Monthly newsletter.

Internal newsletter implemented and 
published as per requirement.

Induction Policy. Monitor programme for the introduc-
tion of new staff to the organisation.

Ongoing – completion of induction 
monitoring form by each new member 
of staff.

Staff Handbook. A simple booklet introducing Policies 
and Procedures, and employee rights 
and responsibilities will be issued to 
all staff members.

June 2011. 

Policies and Procedures. Review of Policies and Procedures to 
ensure statutory compliance and ap-
propriateness for the organisation.

Biennial activity by July 2011 through 
outsourcing to contractor. Brief com-
pleted by March 2011.

Moonlighting Policy. Consult on current documentation, 
collect benchmarks from other arts 
based cultural institutions and agree 
on policy.

Policy adopted by Council by June 
2011 – full implementation by Sep-
tember 2011.

hUman ResoURCes stRategy
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Key activities description target for full implementation

Training Strategy. Complete processes for adoption of 
three year training Strategy.

Annual organisational training needs 
analysis and a clear written strategy 
outlining budget allocations and areas 
of priority.

Approved by Council in May 2011.

Completed by September 2011. 
Workplace Training Plan submitted to 
MAPPP-SETA by June each year.

Medical Benefits Appraisal. Appraisal of market options for intro-
duction of Medical Aid scheme for 
employees.

Assessment in 2009 revealed lack of 
resource to implement across organisa-
tion in current business climate. Situa-
tion to be kept under review as part of 
annual wage negotiations 2011/12.

Job Evaluation Process. Complete process of Job evaluation 
through consultation on consultants 
draft with Directors and HODs in ad-
vance of further staff consultation.

Job evaluation framework approved 
by Council in May 2011.

IIP Strategy. Preparation for an application with 
standards or awards scheme like 
Investors in People.

Strategy completed by March 2011. 
IIP or equivalent achieved by March 
2012 if appropriate.

Management Training Development. Provision of training to improve skills 
of senior and middle management.

Management coaching and develop-
ment available from external special-
ists.

Introductory implementation during 
2011/12.

Introductory implementation during 
2011/12.

Customer Care Training 
Development.

Provision of training to all staff to 
improve customer care awareness 
and skills.

Implementation during 2011/12.

Monitoring and Reporting. Collect statistics relating to recruit-
ment and vacancies, training, ab-
sence, sickness, overtime, discipline, 
grievance, etc.

Provide a monthly report from April 
2011.

HR Sub- Committee; Council. Make sure that the HR Sub-Commit-
tee is fully functional and address all  
strategic HR issues.

To meet at least 4 times per Annum.
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employment equity

oCCUpatIonaL LeVeLS
2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

a.C.I W a.C.I W a.C.I W a.C.I W a.C.I W a.C.I W a.C.I W
Management 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1
Middle management and high level 
specialists 7 6 5 4 5 5 5 6 5 6 5 6 9 3
Supervisor and high level skilled/
clerical 26 16 36 13 32 10 31 9 32 9 33 9 33 9
Lower level skilled/clerical 53 3 42 7 53 4 46 4 46 5 47 5 50 7
Very low skilled 4 7 7 7 7 2 5 2
totals 113 114 120 113 115 117 123

Race and Gender Representation

poSt LeVeL FILLeD
aFRICan CoLoUReD aSIan WHIte

M F M F M F M F
Management yes 2 1 - - 1 - 1 -
Middle management and high level 
specialists yes/no 1 4 - - - - 3 3
Supervisor and high level skilled/
clerical yes 25 4 1 2 - - 4 5
Lower level skilled/clerical yes/no 37 5 3 2 - - 3 2
Very low skilled yes 4 3 - - - - - -

totaL
69 18 4 4 1 - 11 10

87 8 1 21

Whilst the percentages are representative of our popula-
tion, we will be applying our human resource strategic plans 
to promote and motivate our lower level skilled and supervi-
sor level employees to management positions over the next 
five years.

numerical targets and progress

100% representation at all different post levels.

Special initiatives to promote affirmative action

We have committed ourselves to the principle of equal op-
portunity for all and thus accept responsibility to implement 
positive Affirmative Action.

• Vacancies will be advertised in media that is available 
to previously disadvantaged communities.

• The criteria for recruitment has been revised to ensure 
the selection and training procedure in use is fair, con-
sistent and that all target groups benefit directly from 
Affirmative Action.

• A strategy is being implemented whereby all barri-
ers to advancement of disadvantaged groups will be 
eradicated by eliminating unfair discrimination in any 
employment policy or practice.

• Employees from all the target groups are being devel-
oped in terms of skills, education and training.

• To ensure that the Affirmative Action measures im-
plemented by The State Theatre include measures 
which will further encourage diversity in the workplace, 
based on equal dignity and respect for all employees.

• To ensure that everyone in the organisation will have 
direct involvement in developing and implementing an 
Affirmative Action programme.

employment eqUity pRogRamme 
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The State Theatre is committed to ensure a cost effective 
and accountable use of the organisation’s physical, finan-
cial and human resources. 

In order to achieve this aim it must: 

• Plan effectively;
• Provide staff with the correct resources and training 

to achieve a standard of excellence in their work; and
• Ensure excellent communication across the organisa-

tion to enable planning to be effective.

The development of the SAST’s IT infrastructure is an es-
sential strategy for the development of this aim.

In the three years 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 it was 
identified IT at SAST would be required to:

• Increase the access of its staff to e-mail and IT com-
munication – to improve internal communications and 
give access to basic IT skills to all staff;

• Provide appropriate training for staff;
• Provide additional IT workstations for training and 

communication (through a designated IT room);
• Provide each individual employee with the opportunity 

to access e-mail; 
• Provide management software for Planning and facili-

ties to manage events, rental and performance book-
ings in the building and to provide accurate schedules 
to the staff;

• Upgrade IT software in marketing ensuring website 
hit measurement, data base cleaning, corporate data-
base and SMS database update;

• Upgrade website exploring interactivity, space for De-
velopment Department and greater accessibility;

• Provide point-of-sale tills in bars with external support; 
and

• Support pay on foot system in the Parking Garage ex-
ternal support.

During the full year 2009/10 and the first half of 2010/11 
there has been progress on the provision of all the SAST 
needs in the area of IT except for the acquisition of Event 
and Programme Software which therefore becomes the 
major new priority for 2011/12.

Other new areas will be to:

• Upgrade Server Software from Small Business 2003 
to SB 2008;

• Standardise Windows platform and upgrade to Win-
dows 7 when it become available; and

• To review the Internet Service Provider to ensure best 
value for money and maximise functionality.

The cost impact of these upgrades and developments is 
included in the capital and staffing budgets.

infoRmation teChnology ResoURCe stRategy
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geneRal infoRmation

DOMICILE: FH Odendaal Building
320 Pretorius Street
Pretoria
0002

POSTAL ADDRESS: PO Box 566
Pretoria
0001

BANKERS: ABSA Bank

AUDITORS: Auditor-General of South Africa

LEGAL FORM OF ENTITY: Schedule 3A Public Entity

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: Public Finance Management Act (Act 1, 1999)
Cultural Institutions Act (Act 119, 1998)

CONTROLLING ENTITY: Department of Arts and Culture (DAC)

JURISDICTION: Declared cultural institution under the DAC

NATURE OF OPERATIONS: The South African State Theatre is classified as a Receiving House i.e. pre-
senting Performing Arts Productions from commercial producers. We have an 
artistic component that produces developmental productions.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES: The principal activities of the South African State Theatre include Production 
of Developmental Performing Arts Productions, theatre rentals, office rental, 
rental of parking facility and rental of décor, wardrobe and props.
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The Audit Committee herewith presents its report for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2012 in terms of Section 
51(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 
1999.

composition oF the audit committee

The audit committee consist of four permanent members 
and is a sub-committee of the South African State Theatre 
Council. Chairperson of Council, executives, representa-
tives of the Auditor-General of South Africa and the inter-
nal auditors, PriceWaterhouseCoopers attend by standing 
invitation. 

The committee met four times in the reporting year on the 
following dates:

26 May 2011
28 July 2011
24 November 2011
29 March 2012

audit committee Responsibilities

The audit committee has adopted and complied with ap-
propriate formal terms of reference in the audit charter in 
line with the requirements of Section 51(1)(a) of the Public 
Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 and Treasury Reg-
ulation 27.1. These terms of reference were reviewed and 
updated during the year and approved by Council.

the eFFectiveness oF inteRnal contRol

The audit committee monitors effectiveness of internal 
controls, in the context of the approved risk assessment of 
the organisation with the aid of a three year rolling internal 
audit and the statutory regularity audits performed by the 
Auditor-General of South Africa. Internal auditors present 
audit reports during audit committee meetings based on the 
approved audit plan. 

name of member date of appointment date of termination
incoming committee
Mr. JD Watson – Chairperson 31 July 2011 -

Mrs. B.M. Neuhoff 31 July 2011 -

Adv. SDK Motsiri 31 July 2011 -

Adv. MJ Ralefatane 31 July 2011 -

outgoing committee
Mr. SAH Kajee – Outgoing Chairperson 14 October 2008 31 July 2011

Mr. N Baloyi 31 July 2008 31 July 2011

Mrs. B.M. Neuhoff  21 January 2010 31 July 2011

Mr. T Simelane 12 May 2009 31 July 2011

Dr. K Netshiombo 21 January 2010 31 July 2011

RepoRt of the aUDit Committee
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The committee reports that there was a deterioration in in-
ternal financial controls from the prior period and has di-
rected management to develop appropriate action plans 
to address and implement weaknesses and recommenda-
tions noted by internal auditors and the Auditor-General of 
South Africa. The committee will review such action plans 
and progress made at its meetings.

We are satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly 
reports prepared and issued by the Council of the South 
African State Theatre during the year under review.

evaluation oF annual Financial 
statements

The Audit Committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial 
statements to be included in the annual report with the 
Auditor-General of-South Africa and the Accounting 
Authority;

• Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s man-
agements report and management’s response thereto;

• Reviewed changes in accounting policy and practices;
• Reviewed the organisation’s compliance with legal 

and regulatory provisions; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from audit.

The audit committee is very disappointed in the qualifica-
tion received but concurs and accepts the Auditor-General 
of South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements, 
and are of the opinion that the audited financial statements 
should be accepted and read together with the report of the 
Auditor-General of South Africa.

inteRnal audit

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit func-
tion is operating effectively and that it has addressed the 
risks pertinent to the organisation.

auditoR-GeneRal oF south aFRica

The audit committee has met with the Auditor-General of 
South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

john Watson
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
30 July 2012
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RepoRt of the aUDitoR-geneRal

RepoRt on the Financial statements

introduction

I have audited the financial statements of the South African 
State Theatre set out on pages 47 to 82 which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, the 
statement of financial performance, statement of changes 
in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then 
ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial 
statements

The accounting authority is responsible for the prepara-
tion and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the Public Finance Management 
Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and 
for such internal control as management determines neces-
sary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

auditor-General’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan-
cial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit 
in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 
2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General notice issued 
in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical require-
ments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from mate-
rial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evi-
dence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the au-
ditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting poli-
cies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified audit 
opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
There was no system of control over the recording of out-
standing invoices at year-end on which I could rely for the 
purpose of my audit, and there were no satisfactory audit 
procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable as-
surance that all outstanding invoices have been accrued 
or provided for. Consequently, I am unable to determine 
whether any adjustments were necessary to trade and 
other payables as disclosed in note 20, and administrative 
expense, selling and distribution costs and other expenses 
as disclosed in notes 7, 8 and 11 to the annual financial 
statements.

Irregular expenditure
Section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA requires the entity to im-
plement and maintain an appropriate procurement and 

RepoRt oF the auditoR-GeneRal 
to paRliament on the south aFRican state theatRe
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provisioning system which is fair, equitable, transparent, 
competitive and cost effective. Payments were made in 
contravention of the supply chain management require-
ments amounting to R1 563 712 (2011: R8 810 367) and 
disclosed as irregular expenditure in note 29 to the financial 
statements. There was no system of control over irregular 
expenditure on which I could rely for the purpose of my au-
dit, and there were no satisfactory audit procedures that I 
could perform to obtain reasonable assurance that all ir-
regular expenditure was properly recorded.  Consequently, 
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were 
required to the amount disclosed as irregular expenditure.

Qualified opinion
In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters de-
scribed in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs, the 
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the South African State Theatre as 
at 31 March 2012 and its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA 
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

emphasis of matter

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modi-
fied in respect of this matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures
As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, the cor-
responding figures for 31 March 2011 have been restated 
as a result of an error discovered on 31 March 2012 in the 
financial statements of South African State Theatre at, and 
for the year ended, 31 March 2011.

RepoRt on otheR leGal and ReGulato-
Ry ReQuiRements

In accordance with the PAA and the General notice issued 
in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance 
with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion.

predetermined objectives

I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the use-
fulness and reliability of the information in the annual per-
formance report as set out on pages 12 to 25 of the annual 
report.

The reported performance against predetermined objec-
tives was evaluated against the overall criteria of useful-
ness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the 
annual performance report relates to whether it is pre-
sented in accordance with the National Treasury annual 
reporting principles and whether the reported performance 
is consistent with the planned objectives The usefulness 
of information further relates to whether indicators and tar-
gets are measurable (i.e.  well defined, verifiable, specific, 
measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by 
the National Treasury Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI).

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected 
programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequate-
ly reflects the facts (i.e.  whether it is valid, accurate and 
complete).

The material findings are as follows:

usefulness of information

Presentation

Reasons for major variances not explained
All major variances between planned and actual achieve-
ments were not explained in the annual performance report 
for the year under review, as per the National Treasury an-
nual report preparation guide. This was due to a lack of 
documented and approved internal policies and procedures 
to address reporting processes and events pertaining to 
performance management and reporting.
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Consistency

Reported targets not consistent with planned targets
Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires that the strategic 
plan should form the basis for the annual report, therefore 
requiring the consistency of objectives, indicators and tar-
gets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 
27% of the reported targets were not consistent with the 
targets as per the approved strategic plan. This is due to 
the lack of documented and approved internal policies and 
procedures to address reporting processes and events per-
taining to performance management and reporting.

Changes to targets not approved
Treasury Regulation 30.1.1 requires that the strategic plan 
must be approved by the executive authority. Therefore, 
if the strategic plan is changed in-year due to significant 
policy or mandate changes, the updated plan has to be ap-
proved by the executive authority. A total of 27% of targets 
reported in the annual performance report were inconsist-
ent with the targets as per the approved strategic plan. This 
was due to the lack of documented and approved internal 
policies and procedures to address reporting processes 
and events pertaining to performance management and 
reporting.

Measurability

Performance targets not specific
The FMPPI requires that performance targets be specific 
in clearly identifying the nature and required level of per-
formance. A total of 66% of the targets relevant to strategic 
objectives were not specific in clearly identifying the nature 
and the required level of performance. This was due to the 
fact that management was aware of the requirements of the 
FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable 
application of the principles.

Performance targets not measurable
The FMPPI requires that performance targets be measur-
able. The required performance could not be measured for a 
total of 66% of the targets relevant to the selected strategic 
objectives. This was due to the fact that management was 
aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive 
the necessary training to enable application of the principles.

Performance indicators not well defined
The FMPPI requires that indicators should have clear, un-
ambiguous data definitions so that data is collected con-
sistently and is easy to understand and use. A total of 38% 
of the indicators relevant to programmes were not well de-
fined in that clear, unambiguous data definitions were not 
available to allow for data to be collected consistently. This 
was due to the fact that management was aware of the re-
quirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary 
training to enable application of the principles.

Reliability of information

Reported performance not valid, accurate and complete

I was unable to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence 
to satisfy myself as to the validity, accuracy and complete-
ness of the actual performance reported in the annual 
performance report. This was due to a lack of a document 
management system.

additional matter

I draw attention to the matter below. This matter does not 
impact on the findings reported above.

Achievement of planned targets
Of the total number of planned targets, only 42 targets were 
achieved during the year under review. As a result 56% of 
the total planned targets were not achieved during the year 
under review. This was as a result of the institution not con-
sidering relevant systems and evidential requirements dur-
ing the annual strategic planning process.

compliance With laWs and ReGulations

I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity 
has complied with applicable laws and regulations regard-
ing financial matters, financial management and other re-
lated matters. My findings on material non-compliance with 
specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as 
set out in the General notice 839 of 2011 issued in terms of 
the PAA are as follows:
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strategic planning and performance management

The accounting authority did not establish procedures for 
quarterly reporting of performance to the executive author-
ity to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation 
and correction as required by Treasury Regulation 30.2.1.

Annual financial statements and annual report

The financial statements submitted for auditing were not 
prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial report-
ing framework and supported by full and proper records, 
as required by section 55(1 )(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Ma-
terial misstatements of current assets, liabilities, revenue, 
expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors 
in the submitted financial statements were subsequently 
corrected and the supporting records were provided, but 
the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting re-
cords that could not be provided resulted in the financial 
statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

assets and liabilities

Bank reconciliations were not performed on a weekly basis, 
as required by Treasury Regulation 31.1.2(j).

expenditure management

The accounting authority did not take effective steps to 
prevent irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as re-
quired by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

procurement and contract management

The preference point system was not applied in all procure-
ment of goods and services above R30 000, as required by 
section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Frame-
work Act and Treasury Regulation 16A6.3(b).

Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 
were procured without obtaining the required price quotations, 
as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

Internal control
In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General notice 
839 of 2011, issued in Government Gazette No. 34783 of 
28 November 2011, I considered internal control relevant 
to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of internal control. The matters re-
ported below are limited to the significant deficiencies that 
resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, the findings aris-
ing from the audit of the annual performance report and the 
findings arising from the audit of compliance with laws and 
regulations included in this report.

leadership

The accounting authority did not exercise oversight respon-
sibility regarding financial and performance reporting and 
compliance and related internal controls.

The entity did not implement effective HR management to 
ensure that adequate and sufficiently skilled resources are 
in place and that performance is monitored.

The entity did not establish and communicate policies and 
procedures to enable and support understanding and ex-
ecution of internal control objectives, processes and re-
sponsibilities.

The entity did not establish an IT governance framework 
that supports and enables the business, delivers value and 
improves performance.

Financial and performance management

The entity did not implement proper record keeping in a 
timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and ac-
curate information is accessible and available to support 
financial and performance reporting.

The entity did not implement controls over daily and month-
ly processing and reconciling of transactions.

The entity did not prepare regular, accurate and complete 
financial and performance reports that are supported and 
evidenced by reliable information.
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The entity did not review and monitor compliance with ap-
plicable laws and regulations.

The entity did not design and implement formal controls 
over IT systems to ensure the reliability of the systems and 
the availability, accuracy and protection of information.

Governance

The accounting authority did not implement appropriate risk 
management activities to ensure that regular risk assess-
ments, including consideration of IT risks and fraud preven-
tion, are conducted and that a risk strategy to address the 
risks is developed and monitored.

Pretoria
31 July 2012
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CoRpoRate goVeRnanCe RepoRt

The Council fulfils the role of the accounting authority in 
terms of section 49 of the PFMA. The Council endorses the 
principles in the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct 
recommendations by King Committee and King III. The 
Council adopts the principles of openness, integrity and ac-
countability. The Council comprises of eight Non-executive
members, including the chairperson and has met four times 
during the year under review.

inteRnal contRols

Systems of financial and internal controls are in place to 
provide reasonable assurance the assets are safeguarded, 
and that the liabilities and working capital are efficiently 
managed. Having regard for the size of the organisation re-
liance is placed on the supervision of the CEO. The internal 
audit function is outsourced to PricewaterhouseCoopers 
and performs an independent review of the effectiveness of 
the system of financial and internal control. Internal auditors 
liaise with Auditor-General, and any material weaknesses 
are brought to the attention of management and the audit 
committee for consideration and immediate action.

RisK manaGement / FRaud pRevention 
plan

A risk management policy has been in place since the fi-
nancial year 2006/07. Internal auditors perform a risk as-
sessment annually to enable management to identify, 
evaluate and assess possible risks effectively. A fraud pre-
vention plan has been put in place in order to define author-
ity levels, responsibilities for action, and reporting lines in 
the event of a suspected fraud or irregularity.

mateRiality and siGniFicance FRame-
WoRK

As required by Treasury regulations, the Council has devel-
oped and approved on a materiality and significance frame-
work appropriate to its size and circumstances.
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statement of CoUnCil’s Responsibility

In terms of the Cultural Institutions Act of 1998, the Coun-
cil’s submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2012 
as follows:

GeneRal RevieW and natuRe oF 
activities

The primary business of The South African State Theatre is 
to promote the diversity of South African arts including the 
development of artists, producers, technicians and audi-
ences through quality programming and accessibility.

There has been no material change in the nature or con-
duct of the company’s business during the year under re-
view. The annual financial statements adequately disclose 
the results of the operations for the year under review and 
the state of the Cultural Institution affairs at 31 March 2012.

state oF aFFaiRs

The Annual Financial Statements of the entity reflect a net 
deficit of R5,447,685 The deficit is a result of the following:

• Additional depreciation of R4,009,888 on buildings, 
accounted for the first time in the Financial Statements 
of the entity.

• A provision for post retirement medical aid, and pen-
sion payout of R1,942,340.

The additional depreciation and provision for post retirement 
medical aid and pension payout add up to R5 952 228.

statement oF council’s Responsibility

The members of the company are responsible for maintain-
ing adequate accounting records and the preparation and 
integrity of the annual financial statements and related in-
formation. The directors are also responsible for the system 
of internal controls, in order to assure reliability of the fi-
nancial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and 
maintain accountability for the assets and to prevent and 
detect material misstatements and losses.

In terms of the Supply Change Management policy, an im-
plementation plan of the SCM framework is in progress.

pRopeRty, plant and eQuipment and 
investment pRopeRty

Property, plant and equipment to the value of R5,226,286 
have been acquired during the year. Property, plant and 
equipment is recorded at historical cost and depreciated on 
a straight-line basis over the useful lives thereof.

investment policy

Surplus cash is invested only in approved South African Fi-
nancial Institutions, with an investment grade credit rating.
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statement of finanCial peRfoRmanCe

note(s)

2012
R

2011
R

Restated

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 3  37 199 594  38 387 681 

Revenue from exchange transactions 4  24 499 068  31 147 532 

Investment Income 5  656 430  824 181 

Revenue from non-exchange recognised 6  5 014 152  5 477 088 

total Revenue  67 369 243  75 836 482 

eXpense
Administrative expenses 7  12 294 009  12 641 193 

Selling & distribution costs 8  9 856 854  22 972 502 

Cost of refreshments 9  1 083 200  921 683 

Compensation of employees 10  33 261 879  28 088 379 

Other expenses 11  16 274 257  13 847 420 

Finance costs 12  46 729  59 050 

total expenses  72 816 928  78 530 227 

Deficit/Surplus for the period  (5 447 685)  (2 693 745)

as at 31 March 2012
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statement of finanCial position
for the year ended 31 March 2012

note(s)

2012
R

2011
R

Restated

assets
current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13  21 867 652  15 620 462 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 15  1 212 139  1 696 865 

Inventories 16  300 584  367 124 

 23 380 376  17 684 451 

non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17  178 552 487  180 426 710 

Investment Property 18  3 925 178  4 224 107 

Intangible assets 19  83 641  107 077 

 182 561 306  184 757 894 

total assets  205 941 682  202 442 345 

liabilities
current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 20  3 921 289  4 387 264 

Non-exchange revenue liability account 6  18 461 811  10 265 963 

Current finance lease liability 21.1  141 248  125 053 

Employee cost provisions 22  1 025 524  1 030 710 

 23 549 872  15 808 990 

non-current liabilities
Non-current finance lease liability 21.1  104 188  245 436 

Long term provisions 23  4 715 338  3 367 950 

 4 819 526  3 613 386 

total liabilities  28 369 399  19 422 376 

net assets  177 572 284  183 019 969 

net assets
Accumulated surplus  177 572 284  183 019 969 

total net assets  177 572 284  183 019 969 
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statement of Changes in net assets

note(s)

accumulated   
suRplus
Restated

balance at 01/04/2010  185 713 714 

Balance as previously stated  32 084 858 

Prior period error 26  153 628 856 

Deficit for the year  (2 693 745)

Net surplus for the year as previously stated  1 357 229 

Prior year error 26  (4 050 974)

balance at 31/03/2011  183 019 969 
Net deficit for the year  (5 447 685)
balance as at 31/03/2012  177 572 284 

Included in the accumulated surplus is a fair value adjustment relating to Land and Buildings as at 1 April 2010 of  
R5 252 520 and R 148 367 336 respectively.

for the year ended 31 March 2012
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2012

note(s)

2012
R

2011
R

Restated

cash FloWs FRom opeRatinG activities
Receipts  66 976 633  74 002 260 

   Sales of goods and services  24 762 887  30 137 491 

   Grants  37 199 594  38 387 681 

   Non-exchange revenue  5 014 152  5 477 088 

Payments  64 257 149  72 795 471 

   Employee costs  31 919 677  31 399 127 

   Suppliers  32 337 473  41 396 344 

   Cash generated from operations 25  2 719 483  1 206 789 

   Interest received  656 430  824 181 

   Interest paid  (46 729)  (59 050) 

Net cash flows from operating activities  3 329 183  1 971 920 

cash FloWs FRom investinG activities
Purchase of fixed assets  (5 226 286)  (6 034 953) 

Purchase of Intangible assets  (3 419)  (95 041) 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  76 917  33 941 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (5 152 787)  (6 096 053) 

cash FloWs FRom FinancinG activities
(Repayment) proceeds of finance lease liability  (125 053)  241 800 

Movement in non-exchange revenue liability  8 195 848  6 132 912 

Net cash flows from financing activities  8 070 795  6 374 712 

net increase / (decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents  6 247 191  2 250 579 

net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  15 620 462  13 369 883 

net cash and cash equivalents at end of period  21 867 652  15 620 462 
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statement of CompaRison of bUDget anD aCtUal amoUnts

2012

note(s)
actual

R
budGet

R
vaRiance

R
vaRiance

%

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 7  37 199 594  37 208 992  (9 398) 0%

Revenue from exchange transactions 8  24 499 068  23 584 920  914 148 4%

Investment Income 9  656 430  869 588  (213 158) -25%

Non-exchange revenue recognised 10  5 014 152  10 163 541  (5 149 389)

total Revenue  67 369 243  71 827 041  (4 457 798) -6%

eXpense
Administrative expenses 11  12 294 009  6 960 543  (5 333 466) -77%

Personnel expenses 14  33 261 879  30 684 144  (2 577 735) -8%

Selling & distribution costs 12  9 856 854  12 026 701  2 169 847 18%

Cost of refreshments 13  1 083 200  830 047  (253 153) -30%

Other expenses 15  16 274 257  21 325 606  5 051 349 24%

Finance costs 16  46 729  -    (46 729)

total expenses  72 816 928  71 827 041  (989 887) -1%

surplus for the period  (5 447 685)  -    (5 447 685)

for the year ended 31 March 2012
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aCCoUnting poliCies
for the year ended 31 March 2012

The financial statements have been prepared in accord-
ance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, 
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Stand-
ards Board.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on 
an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They 
are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant account policies are disclosed 
below.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the prepara-
tion of these financial statements are set out below and are 
consistent in all material respects with those applied in the 
previous year.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation 
uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management 
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts presented in the annual financial statements 
and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation 
of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 
these estimates which may be material to the annual finan-
cial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables
The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the 
entity makes judgements as to whether there is observable 
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated fu-
ture cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receiv-
ables is calculated on a portfolio basis on the remaining 
individually impaired items, based on historical loss ratios, 
adjusted for national and industry-specific economic con-
ditions and other indicators present at the reporting date 
that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual 
loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and 
scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active mar-
kets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the 
reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial 
assets held by the entity is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in 
an active market is determined using valuation techniques. 
The entity uses a variety of methods and makes assump-
tions that are based on market conditions existing at the 
end of each reporting period. 

The carrying value less impairment provisions of trade re-
ceivables and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclo-
sure purposes is estimated by discounting the future con-
tractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is 
available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing
The recoverable (service) amounts of individual assets and 
cash-generating units have been determined based on the 
higher of value-in-use calculations and fair value less costs 
to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and 
assumptions.

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets 
when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indica-
tions that impairment may have occurred, estimates are pre-
pared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.

1. pResentation oF annual Financial statements
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and in-
tangible assets
The entity’s management determines the estimated useful 
lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is 
based on the condition and use of the individual assets, in 
order to determine the remaining period over which the as-
set can and will be used.

Investment Property
The entity performs valuations on the Investment Property 
to determine the market value at the end of every three 
years. The market values are stated in the notes of Annual 
Financial Statements.

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an 
estimate based on the information available. Additional dis-
closures of these estimates of provisions are included in 
note 23 Provisions.

Effective interest rate
The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future 
cash flows.

Allowance for impairment
On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in sur-
plus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is 
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference 
between the receivable’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the ef-
fective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.2 property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current as-
sets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use 
in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to 
be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is rec-
ognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the com-
pany; and

• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reli-
ably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the 
purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

When significant components of an item of property, plant 
and equipment have different useful lives, they are ac-
counted for as separate items (major components) of prop-
erty, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct 
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired 
at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as 
at the date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired 
in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, 
or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, 
the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the 
cost). If the acquired non-monetary asset’s fair value is not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the 
asset given up. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and remov-
ing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is 
also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, 
where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and 
where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the as-
set or using it for purposes other than the production of in-
ventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

aCCoUnting poliCies
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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Subsequent to initial measurement property, plant and 
equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent to initial measurement property, plant and 
equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over 
their expected useful lives to their estimated residual val-
ues. Artworks are not currently depreciated as their cur-
rent residual value is expected to be greater than carrying 
amount.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment 
have been assessed as follows:

average useful life
Buildings 37 years

Printing equipment 3 – 5 years

Office furniture and equipment 
(Including computer equipment)

5 – 7 years

Motor vehicles 5 – 7 years

Stage and workshop equipment 5 – 10 years

Sundry fixed assets 5 – 10 years

Leasehold improvements 5 – 7 years

Renaissance theatre equipment 5 – 7 years

Décor/costumes/props 5 – 7 years

Orchestra equipment 5 – 7 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of 
each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 
is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the items 
is depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
the statement of financial performance unless it is included 
in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised 
on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service 
potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss aris-
ing from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item.

Land and buildings
The South African State Theatre occupies and controls 
economic benefits arising from the following properties 
which are owned by other parties:

property description owner 
FH Odendaal Building
320 Pretorius Street
Pretoria
0002

Department of Public Works    
Gauteng Department of 
Infrastructure Development

A valuation on land and building was performed in the finan-
cial year 2011/2012 to determine its fair value.  The method 
of valuation used is the Comparable rental income capitali-
sation method. 

Assumptions made in the valuation are:

• The property is to let at market rentals and that future 
rental income will grow at market related rates 

• that theatre require expensive single purpose build-
ings, 

• constant change in classes of entertainment, 
• character of tenancy often is not of the highest type 

and is subject to radical change on short notice due to 
dissolution, merging etc, 

• theatre buildings can be remodelled for other use only 
at extremely high expenses
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• television may eventually change the entire entertain-
ment field

The valuation was performed by DJR Professional valuer 
1782   

1.3 investment property

Investment property is property which the South African 
State Theatre holds to earn rentals or for capital apprecia-
tion purposes, rather than for use in the production or sup-
ply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or 
for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is initially measured at cost. Subse-
quently investment property is carried at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation and any impairment losses. It is currently 
depreciated at 5% p.a. with a zero estimated residual value.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method 
of investment property is reviewed at the end of each re-
porting period. If the expectations differ from previous es-
timates, the change is accounted for as a change in ac-
counting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset.

There are no contractual obligations to purchase, construct 
or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance 
or enhancements.

1.4 intangible assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

• is capable of being separated or divided from an entity 
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 
either individually or together with a related contract, 
assets or liability; or

• arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, 
regardless whether those rights are transferable or 
separate from the entity or from other rights and ob-
ligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic ben-
efits or service potential that are attributable to the as-
set will flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired at no cost or for a 
nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at the date of ac-
quisition.

Subsequent to initial measurement intangible assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation period, residual value, if any, and the 
amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ 
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a 
change in accounting estimate.

Intangible assets comprise of computer software and have 
been assessed as having a finite useful life with the amor-
tisation charge thereon recognised on a straight line basis. 

average useful life
Computer Software 2 – 4 years

An intangible asset is assessed at each reporting date as 
to whether there are any indications that the asset may 
be impaired. If such indications exist, the entity shall es-
timate the recoverable amount of the asset. If, and only if, 
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss 
that is recognised immediately in the statement of financial 
performance.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no 
future economic benefits or service potential are expected 
from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intan-
gible asset is determined as the difference between the net 

aCCoUnting poliCies
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disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
intangible asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or 
deficit when the intangible asset is derecognised.

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a re-
sidual interest of another entity.

Classification
The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities 
into the following categories:

• Loans and receivables – financial asset measured at 
amortised cost

• Trade and other payables – financial liability measured 
at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the finan-
cial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place 
at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an an-
nual basis.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the en-
tity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the in-
struments.

The entity classifies financial instruments, or their compo-
nent parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a finan-
cial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, 
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.

Subsequent measurement
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabili-
ties after initial recognition using the following category:

• Financial instruments at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are 
subject to an impairment review.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabil-
ity is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principle 
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation us-
ing the effective interest method of any difference between 
that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any 
reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance ac-
count) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the entity assesses all financial as-
sets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to 
determine whether there is objective evidence that a finan-
cial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficul-
ties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bank-
ruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators 
of impairment.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on 
financial assets measured at amortised cost has been in-
curred, the amount of the loss is measured as the differ-
ence between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit 
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the fi-
nancial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an al-
lowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in 
surplus or deficit.
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Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the 
financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objec-
tively to an event occurring after the impairment was rec-
ognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount 
of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is re-
versed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus 
or deficit. Where financial assets are impaired through use 
of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recog-
nised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When 
such assets are written off, the write off is made against the 
relevant allowance account.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are credited against operating expenses.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair 
value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allow-
ances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised 
in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that 
the asset is impaired.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. 
When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off 
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Sub-
sequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against operating expenses in surplus or deficit.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and re-
ceivables.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effec-
tive interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and 
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid invest-
ments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.6 leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers sub-
stantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.

Finance lease – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in 
the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the 
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 
position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of 
the minimum lease payments is the entity’s incremental 
borrowing rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the fi-
nance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease 
terms so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the re-
maining balance of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which 
they are incurred.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or con-
tains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrange-
ment is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The 
classification of the lease is determined using GRAP 13 – 
Leases.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset or liability. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a re-
duction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. 

aCCoUnting poliCies
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Any contingent rent is recognised separately as an ex-
pense when paid or payable and are not straight-lined over 
the lease term.

Operating lease - lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue from ex-
change transactions in surplus or deficit.

1.7 inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where in-
ventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal considera-
tion, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale, exchange or distribution.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, 
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily in-
terchangeable and goods or services produced and segre-
gated for specific projects is assigned using specific identi-
fication of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in-first-out 
formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those 
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of 
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all 
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the 
period the write-down or loss occurs. 

The amount of any reversal of any write-down of invento-
ries, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories rec-
ognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal 
occurs.

1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The entity assesses at each end of the reporting period 
whether there is any indication that an asset may be im-
paired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, 
the entity also tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful 
life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impair-
ment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its re-
coverable amount. This impairment test is performed during 
the annual period and at the same time every period. If an 
intangible asset was initially recognised during the current 
reporting period, that intangible asset is tested for impair-
ment before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s 
remaining service potential.
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If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any ac-
cumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised im-
mediately in surplus or deficit. 

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods for assets may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a 
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impair-
ment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recog-
nised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

1.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue from exchange transactions
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity 
receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in 
the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to an-
other entity in exchange.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 
following conditions have been satisfied:

• the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

• the entity retains neither continuing managerial in-
volvement to the degree usually associated with own-
ership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the transaction will flow to the company; and
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 

transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting 
period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reli-
ably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the transaction will flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the end 

of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 

complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the render-
ing of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall 
be recognised only to the extent of the expenses recog-
nised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting 
period.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts receiv-
able for goods and services provided in the normal course 
of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and 
value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effec-
tive interest rate method.

Royalties are recognised on the accrual basis in accord-
ance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recog-
nised as revenue over the period during which the service 
is performed.

aCCoUnting poliCies
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Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not 
exchange transactions e.g. donations. In a non-exchange 
transaction, an entity either receives value from another 
entity without directly giving approximately equal value in 
exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly 
receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises 
mostly government grants and transfers. Revenue from a 
non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the 
increase in net assets recognised by the entity. An inflow of 
resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as 
an asset shall be recognised as revenue, except to the ex-
tent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same 
inflow. As the entity satisfies a present obligation recog-
nised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from 
a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it shall 
reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and 
recognise an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity 
recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent 
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the in-
crease in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a 
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event 
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduc-
tion in the liability is recognised as revenue.

A present obligation arising from a non-exchange transac-
tion that meets the definition of a liability is recognised as a 
liability when and only when:

(a) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
future economic benefits or service potential will be re-
quired to settle the obligation; and

(b) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.

The amount recognised as a liability shall be the best esti-
mate of the amount required to settle the present obligation 
at the reporting date.

1.10 provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

• the company has a present obligation as a result of a 
past event; 

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obliga-
tion; and 

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the ex-
penditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a 
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, 
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall 
be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for 
the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the pro-
vision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present ob-
ligation under the contract shall be recognised and meas-
ured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an 
entity:

• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identi-
fying at least:
ͦ the business or part of a business concerned;
ͦ the principal locations affected;
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ͦ the location, function, and approximate number of 
employees who will be compensated for terminat-
ing their services;

ͦ the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
ͦ when the plan will be implemented; and

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it 
will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement 
that plan or announcing its main features to those af-
fected by it.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recog-
nised. 

1.11 employee costs 

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable 
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period 
in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised 
as an expense as the employees render services that in-
crease their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments 
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or con-
structive obligation to make such payments as a result of 
past performance. 

Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans 
are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retire-
ment benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution 
plans where the company’s obligation under the schemes 
is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retire-
ment benefit plan.

A valuation was performed on the pension payments based 
on the 7 (2011: 7) retired pensioners previously employed by 
the state theatre, on a full term liability, longest mortality rate. 

The South African State Theatre has a moral obligation to-
wards these monthly payments.

Medical Benefits
A valuation was performed on the medical aid fund based 
on 22 (2011: 24) principal members, on a full term liability 
longest mortality rate.

The South African State Theatre is obligated to contribute 
monthly premiums on behalf of the principal members.

1.12 borrowing costs

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and 
only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link 
the borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the na-
ture of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the pe-
riod in which they are incurred.

1.13 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclas-
sified to conform to changes in presentation in the current 
year.

1.14 irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA 
is expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in 
accordance with:

• a requirement of the PFMA (Act No.29 of 1999); or
• a requirement of the State Tender Board Act (Act No. 

86 of 1986), or any regulations made in terms of the 
Act; or

• a requirement in any provincial legislation providing 
for procurement procedures in that provincial govern-
ment.

All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recog-
nised as an expense in the statement of financial perfor-
mance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The 

aCCoUnting poliCies
for the year ended 31 March 2012



PAGE 62 • State Theatre              Annual Report • 2012

Log In

expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of 
the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently ac-
counted for as revenue in the statement of financial perfor-
mance.

1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that 
was made in vain and would have been avoided had rea-
sonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature 
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 

accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial per-
formance.

1.16 taxation

No provision for taxation or VAT has been made since the 
entity is directly funded by the government and exemption 
from taxation has been granted by South African Revenue 
Service (SARS).

1.17 Going concern

The annual financial statements are prepared on a going 
concern basis. Nothing has come to the attention of the 
members of council to indicate that the institution will not 
remain a going concern for the foreseeable future.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet ef-
fective. These include the following Standards and Interpretations that are applicable to the South African State Theatre 
and may have an impact on future financial statements:

GRap 21 - impairment of non-cash-generating assets
ASB Issue date: March 2009
Effective date: For years beginning on or after 1 April 2012
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial statements.

New standard of GRAP: Prescribes the procedures that an entity applies to determine whether a non-cash-generating 
asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised. The standard also specifies when an entity would 
reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosures. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be im-
material in the context of this entity’s operations

2. neW accountinG pRonouncements
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GRap 23 - Revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes and transfers)
ASB Issue date: February 2008
Effective date: For years beginning on or after 1 April 2012
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial statements.

New standard of GRAP: Prescribes requirements for the financial reporting of revenue arising from non-exchange 
transactions, other than non-exchange transactions that give rise to an entity combination. The standard deals with is-
sues that need to be considered in recognising and measuring revenue from non-exchange transactions, including the 
identification of contributions from owners. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the 
context of this entity’s operations.

GRap 24 - presentation of budget information in Financial statements
ASB Issue date: November 2007
Effective date: For years beginning on or after 1 April 2012
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial statements.

New standard of GRAP dealing with the presentation and disclosure of budget information as required by GRAP 1. The 
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity’s operations

GRap 26 - impairment of cash-generating assets
ASB Issue date: March 2009
Effective date: For years beginning on or after 1 April 2012
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial statements.

New standard of GRAP: Prescribes the procedures that an entity applies to determine whether a cash-generating as-
set is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised. The standard also specifies when an entity would 
reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosures. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be im-
material in the context of this entity’s operations

(ii) standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits
ASB Issue date: November 2009
Effective date: To be determined by Minister

New standard of GRAP dealing with the requirements around accounting and disclosure of employee benefits including 
short-term, long-term and post retirement employee benefits. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to 
be immaterial in the context of this entity’s operations

GRap 103 - heritage assets
Effective date: For years beginning on or after 1 April 2012

GRap 104 - Financial instruments
ASB Issue date: October 2009
Effective date: To be determined by Minister

New standard of GRAP dealing with the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments.  
The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity’s operations

aCCoUnting poliCies
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2012
R

2011
R

3. Revenue FRom non-eXchanGe tRansactions  37 199 594  38 387 681 

DAC Operational Grant  37 109 000  34 969 038 

DAC Other Grants  -    3 354 000 

MAPPP SETA Grant  90 594  64 643 

Restated

4. Revenue FRom eXchanGe tRansactions  24 499 068  31 147 532 

Rental revenue  6 081 514  5 239 251 

Wardrobe hiring & Décor  1 566 085  1 344 406 

Transport hiring  8 589  -   

Production revenue  4 042 692  12 786 683 

Sale of refreshments  1 720 192  1 499 254 

Parking garage revenue  10 081 400  9 423 464 

Other operating revenue  998 596  854 475 

4.1 production Revenue
Production revenue for 2011 includes DAC production grant for FIFA Wold Cup 2010

5. investment income  656 430  824 181 

Interest revenue received on cash balances  656 430  824 181 

6. non eXchanGe Revenue liability
Balance at beginning of the year  10 265 963  4 133 051 

Receipts  13 210 000  11 610 000 

Capital grants recognised  (5 014 152)  (5 477 088)

Balance at end of the year  18 461 811  10 265 963 

Non exchange revenue liability comprises revenue received from DAC for capital expenditure but not yet spent 
in terms of the conditions of the grant.

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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2012
R

2011
R

Restated

7. admnistRative eXpenses  12 294 009  12 641 193 
Audit fees: External Auditors  1 476 604  708 238 
                  Internal Auditors  416 383  576 708 
Bad debts  1 091  1 901 
Communications  771 867  765 523 
Computer expenses  39 436  52 192 
Professional fees: Legal  99 525  1 223 626 
                             Other  545 472  680 307 
Operating lease charges - equipment  116 215  50 872 
Provision for doubtful debts adjustment account  220 906  538 177 
Stationary, licenses and subscriptions  417 104  392 565 
Staff training  182 458  301 515 
Staff welfare and refreshments  116 218  124 618 
Workmen's compensation  217 228  191 290 
Recruitment of staff  324 046  68 531 
Depreciation - Property, plant and equipment  7 023 591  6 654 889 
Depreciation - Investment property  298 929  298 929 
Amortisation - Intangible assets  26 934  11 312 

8. sellinG and distRibution costs  9 856 854  22 972 502 

Marketing  2 540 256  2 937 959 

Production costs  7 081 305  19 642 146 
Travelling  154 923  346 443 
Entertainment  80 369  45 955 

8.1 production costs
Production costs for 2011 include Special Productions funded by DAC grant for FIFA Wold Cup 2010 

9. cost oF ReFReshments  1 083 200  921 683 
Cost of sales comprises of the cost of liquor, refreshments 
and sweets sales from:
Front of House  995 189  773 437 
Applause Lounge  88 010  148 246 

10. compensation oF employees  33 261 879  28 088 379 
10.1 salaries & Wages  29 655 271  24 499 106 

Basic Salary  21 315 921  20 104 933 
Pensioners/Medical  1 942 340  344 866 
Casual wages  5 504 199  2 635 991 
Overtime  897 998  1 159 705 
Leave pay  (5 186)  253 611 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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10. compensation oF employees (cont.)
10.2 social contributions

employer contributions  3 606 608  3 589 273 

Provident funds  3 136 897  3 109 975 

Unemployment Insurance Fund  184 627  186 513 

Skills Development Levy  263 654  276 200 

Funeral insurance  21 429  16 585 

Average number of employees for the year  138  145 

Restated

11. otheR eXpenses  16 274 257  13 847 420 

Cleaning services  2 481 088  2 277 023 

General expenses  718 495  910 770 

Insurance  356 730  305 200 

Repairs, maintenance and upgrading  3 101 406  2 022 700 

Security  3 767 966  3 428 378 

Utilities  5 704 369  4 881 408 

Assets written off  76 917  21 941 

SARS penalties and interest  67 285  - 

12. Finance costs  46 729  59 050 

Interest expense on finance leases  46 729  59 050 

13. cash and cash eQuivalents  21 867 652  15 620 462 

Cash at bank  2 019 191  1 341 930 

Cash floats  85 839  83 569 

Deposits on call  13 578 122  8 366 963 

Short term investments (under 12 months)  6 184 500  5 828 000 

There are no restrictions on the use of cash and cash equivalents
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14. RemuneRation oF senioR manaGement
14.1 at 31 march 2012

name Designation basic salary
annual 
bonus

provident 
fund allowances other total Cost

council members/non executive directors (until 31 july 2011)
Walter Mosetlhi Chairperson of Council  -  -  -  1 104  10 212  11 316 
Sikkie Kajee Council member  -  -  -  -  -  - 
phyllis Klotz Council member  -  -  -  1 008  2 780  3 788 
tZ Morabe Council member  -  -  -  -  -  - 
n baloyi Council member  -  -  -  8 479  4 282  12 761 
Mrs nV Dyani Council member  -  -  -  -  -  - 
M Mogomotsi Council member  -  -  -  2 261  7 046  9 307 
t Simelane Council member  -  -  -  -  1 390  1 390 

new council members/non executive directors (from 1 august 2011)
n Gallant Chairperson of Council - - -  1 708  21 814  23 522 
b neuhoff Council member  -  -  -  4 234  18 070  22 304 
K netshiombo Council member  -  -  -  6 478  28 920  35 398 
a bodrick Council member  -  -  -  1 388  8 340  9 728 
H Gouvelis Council member  -  -  -  634  9 730  10 364 
adv K Motsiri Council member  -  -  -  -  5 560  5 560 
Mr. M ngonyama Council member  -  -  -  2 759  12 510  15 269 
Dr. o ntsoane Council member  -  -  -  1 556  12 510  14 066 
adv J Ralefatane Council member  -  -  -  3 111  10 666  13 777 
Mr. J Watson Council member  -  -  -  293  7 418  7 711 

executive management
X e nduneni-ngema Chief executive officer  702 889  59 887  137 987  84 000  -  984 763 
a Sekhabi artistic director  585 001  48 785  114 449  92 338  -  840 573 
G Viljoen technical manager  578 211  46 943  148 448  17 223  -  790 824 
a Mokoena Chief financial officer  532 515  42 455  101 582  7 800  -  684 351 
e booyens Marketing Director  397 419  32 565  -  11 380  -  441 364 

 2 796 035  230 634  502 466  247 753  161 248 3 938 135 

14.1 at 31 march 2011

name Designation basic salary
annual 
bonus

provident 
fund allowances other total Cost

board members/non executive directors
W Mosetlhi Chairperson of Council  -  -  -  2 142  50 654  52 795 
S Kajee Council member  -  -  -  -  -  - 
p Klotz Council member  -  -  -  1 660  14 984  16 644 
n baloyi Council member  -  -  -  6 132  8 507  14 639 
M Mogomotsi Council member  -  -  -  3 149  15 583  18 732 
b neuhoff Council member  -  -  -  3 384  19 849  23 234 
t Simelane Council member  -  -  -  2 710  14 152  16 862 
K netshiombo Council member  -  -  -  2 765  23 644  26 409 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012



PAGE 68 • State Theatre              Annual Report • 2012

Log In

14. RemuneRation oF senioR manaGement (cont.)
14.1 at 31 march 2011 (cont.)

name Designation basic salary
annual 
bonus

provident 
fund allowances other total Cost

executive directors
X e nduneni-ngema Chief executive officer  621 279  56 517  135 091  84 000  8 953  905 841 
a Sekhabi artistic Director  524 538  48 853  114 608  87 750  199 623  975 372 
Gert Viljoen technical manager  532 015  44 138  140 045  25 095  17 344  758 637 
arthur Mokoena Chief financial officer  490 726  40 008  95 631  7 800  6 945  641 110 
Ismail Carr Marketing Director  339 569  31 583  51 354  64 933  11 629  499 069 

 2 508 128  221 099  536 729  291 520  391 867  3 949 343 

2012
R

2011
R

15. tRade and otheR Receivables  1 212 139  1 696 865 

Trade receivables  1 430 420  1 740 517 

Provisions for doubtful debts  (1 153 065)  (932 159)

Net Trade receivables  277 355  808 358 

Accrued income  128 956  87 178 

Deposits  2 230  2 230 

Other receivables  803 598  799 099 

15.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts Restated
Opening balance  932 159  393 982 

Impairment loss recognised  220 906  538 177 

Impairment loss utilised - -

closing balance  1 153 065  932 159 

Restated

16. inventoRy  300 584  367 124 

Inventory comprises of the following merchandise:

     FOH liquor, refreshments and consumables  229 709  290 587 

     Stationery  70 875  76 538 
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18. investment pRopeRty
carrying amount at start of year  4 224 107  4 523 036 

Cost  5 978 574  5 978 574 

Accumulated depreciation  (1 754 467)  (1 455 538)

Additions(disposals)

Depreciation for the year  (298 929)  (298 929)

carrying amount at end of year  3 925 178  4 224 107 

Cost  5 978 574  5 978 574 

Accumulated depreciation  (2 053 396)  (1 754 467)

The investment property is held at cost.  The market value of the investment property as at 22 March 2012 has 
been valued at R11,500,000. The valuation method used is the income method because most of the buildings on 
the property are let and used for commercial / industrial purpose. The annual income from the property is capital-
ised to arrive at a market value. The property is situated on Erf 169 Weavind Park, City of Tshwane. The valuation 
was performed by DJR Professional Valuer 1782 .

Rental revenue from investment property  1 661 774  1 156 661 

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising 
from investment property that generated rental revenue during the period.  1 079 660  597 982 

19. intanGible assets
Intangible assets comprises of computer software.

carrying amount at start of year  107 077  23 348 

Cost  271 546  176 505 

Accumulated amortisation  (164 469)  (153 157)

Additions  3 419  95 041 

Disposals: Cost  (2 595) -

Disposals: Accum Dep  2 595 -

Amortised for the year  (26 854)  (11 312)

carrying amount at end of year  83 641  107 077 

Cost  272 370  271 546 

Accumulated amortisation  (188 729)  (164 469)
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20. tRade and otheR payables  3 921 289  4 387 264 

Trade payables  1 473 677  1 680 203 

Accrued expenses  2 023 058  1 159 818 

Income received in advance  424 555  1 547 243 

21.1 Finance lease commitments
The institution is leasing certain of its office equipment in terms of finance lease agreements. The institution has 
an option to acquire these assets at the end of the lease. There are no escalation clauses or restrictions imposed 
by the leases. The effective interest rate for the finance leases is 12.24% per annum. The monthly instalment for 
the finance leases range from R379.95 to R3 879.84.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases for equipment are as follows:

  - Due no later than 1 year  163 540  163 540 

  - Due between 1 and 5 years  109 027  272 566 

  - Due later than 5 years  -  - 

 272 566  436 106 

Reconciliation
 Future minimum lease payments  272 566  436 106 

 Present value of future minimum lease payments  (245 436)  (370 489)

 Interest component  27 130  65 617 

Current finance lease liability  141 248  125 053 

Non-current finance lease liability  104 188  245 436 

 245 436  370 489 

21.2 opeRatinG leases

Significant leasing arrangements 
The entity leases certain of its office space in  terms of operating leases. The majority of leases run for 1 year 
in line with the entity's financial year. There are no escalation rates and new contracts are signed with lessees 
each year.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

State Theatre Office Main Building  1 123 131  1 182 061 

  - Due no later than 1 year  1 142 396  1 579 976 

  - Due between 1 and 5 years  -  - 

  - Due later than 5 years  2 265 528  2 762 037 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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21.2 opeRatinG leases
investment property
  - Due no later than 1 year  1 251 881  1 181 217 

  - Due between 1 and 5 years  286 827  - 

  - Due later than 5 years  -  - 

 1 538 708  1 181 217 

The entity leases an on hold telephone message system  with a 1 month  termination notice period and a GAAP 
point of sale software over a three year period.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

  - Due no later than 1 year  58 053  46 608 

  - Due between 1 and 5 years  58 053  40 024 

  - Due later than 5 years

 116 106  86 632 

22. employee cost pRovisions  1 025 524  1 030 710 

Leave pay  1 025 524  1 030 710 

Reconciliation of movement in provision
Balance at beginning of the year  1 030 710  777 099 

The movement for the year  (5 186)  253 611 

Balance at end of the year  1 025 524  1 030 710 

23. pRovisions  4 715 338  3 367 950 

Provision for retired pensioner payments  470 998  358 334 

Provisions for Post retirement medical aid obligations  4 244 341  3 009 616 

The retirement benefits have been provided for in terms of the requirements of the accounting standard for 
provisions and not in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits as they are not Employee benefits as defined. 
The obligation arises as a result of a constructive obligation to provide the benefits, rather than a legal obligation.
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23. pRovisions (cont.)

Reconciliation of movement in provision
 medical 

 obliGation 
 pension 

 obliGation 
Balance at 1 April 2010  3 035 612  3 896 697 

Medical aid / Pension payout for 2010/11  (490 786)  (64 439)

Increase in provision through income statement  464 790  (119 924)

Sanlam/PACT - Pension surpluses payout -  (3 354 000)

Balance at 31 March 2011  3 009 616  358 334 

Medical aid / Pension payout for 2011/12  (528 137)  (66 815)

Increase in provision through Statement of Financial Performance  1 762 861  179 479 

balance at 31 march 2012  4 244 341  470 998 

A valuation was performed of the obligation at year end by Mr. Bertus Jansen of Optimum Financial Services 
Group.

pension payments
A valuation was performed on the pension payments based on 7 (2011: 9) retired pensioners previously em-
ployed by the state theatre,  on a full term liability, longest mortality rate in March 2012. The SA State Theatre 
has a moral obligation towards these monthly payments.

medical fund
A valuation was performed on the medical aid fund based on 22 (2011: 24) principal members, on a full term 
liability longest mortality rate. The SA State Theatre is obliged to contribute monthly premiums on behalf of the 
principal members.

2012
R

2011
R

24. Related paRties
department of arts and culture
The following transactions took place during the period with the Department of Arts and Culture:

Operational grant  37 109 000  34 969 000 

Capex Grant  13 210 000  11 610 000 

Grant for the production of special productions  601 500  3 854 921 

DAC Other Grants  -  3 354 000 

Productions on behalf of DAC  -  2 442 671 

 50 920 500  56 230 592 

marang Financial services
Mr Sikkie Kajee, a former council member and chairman of the  audit committee is also chairman of Marang 
Financial Services, a non-profit making organisation which rents offices in the FH Odendaal building. The rental 
amounts are paid to the State Theatre.

Rental received -  118 938 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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24. Related paRties (cont.)
mr. john Watson 
The Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Mr John Watson, is an employee of Sifuna Consulting, but was not 
directly involved in any work performed at the State Theatre by Sifuna Consulting.

Payments made to Sifuna Consulting for services provided  34 107 -

mr. aubrey sekhabi 
Mr. Sekhabi, the Artistic Director of the SA State Theatre, directed the production of Mantolo Tour and Silent 
Voice Senegal and was compensated in accordance to the moonlighting policy of the State Theatre

Payments: Mantolo Tour Director's Fee -  140 000 

                 Silent Voice Senegal Director's Fee -  30 000 

                 Silent Voice Senegal Royalties -  20 000 

miss n Gallant 
Miss N Gallant, the chairperson of Council of the South African State Theatre, is a member of Dalitso HR Solu-
tion which has performed consultation work for the entity.

Service rendered by Dalitso HR Solutions  11 400 -

The above transaction occurred at an arms length in normal course of business.

Gauteng department of infrastructure and development 
The South African State Theatre occupies and derives economic benefits of building 320 Pretorius Street owned 
by the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development. No rental charge is paid to the Department for the 
use of this building.
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25. cash FloWs FRom opeRatinG activities Restated
surplus for the year  (5 447 685)  (2 693 745)

Adjustments for:  8 302 783  3 438 287 

Depreciation - Property, plant and equipment  7 023 591  6 654 889 

Depreciation - Investment property  298 929  298 929 

Amortisation - Intangible assets  26 854  11 312 

Investment income  (656 430)  (824 181)

Assets write-offs  220 906  538 177 

Provision for doubtful debts  10 859 

Finance cost  46 729  59 050 

Provision for employee benefits  1 342 202  (3 310 748)

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital  2 855 098  744 541 

movements in working capital  (135 615)  462 248 

Decrease / (Increase) in inventory  66 540  (50 132)

Decrease / (Increase) in trade and other receivables from exchange 
transactions  263 820  (1 010 041)

(Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables from exchange 
transactions  (465 974)  1 522 420 

Cash generated by operating activities  2 719 483  1 206 789 

26 pRioR yeaR eRRoR
26.1 Land and Buildings owned by a third party that the entity enjoys economic benefit of, was erroneously omitted 

in the PPE in the Annual Financial Statements of 2010/11.

Artworks under the value of R2000 were recorded on the assets register at R0 value. They were subsequetly 
recorded on the assets register at their fair value. The error has subsequently been rectified and has affected 
the Financial Statements as follows:

1 April 2010

statement of Financial position
Increase in Land  5 252 520 

Increase in Buildings  148 367 336 

Increase in Artworks  9 000 

Increase in Accumulated surpluses  (153 628 856)

Net effect on Statement of Financial Position -

Subtotal in Accumulated surpluses at 1 April 2011  153 628 856 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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31 March 2011

statement of Financial performance
Increase in depreciations  (4 009 928)

Decrease in surplus for the year  4 009 928 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Performance  - 

statement of Financial position
Decrease in buildings  (4 009 928)

Decrease in accumulated surplus  4 009 928 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Position  - 

26.2 Inter-departmental revenue to the value of R214 581.38 was erroneously recognised in the Annual Financial 
Statements for the year 2010/11. This has subsequently been rectified and has affected the Financial State-
ments as follows:

31 March 2011

statement of Financial performance
Decrease in Revenue  214 581 

Decrease in Travel & Entertainment expenses  (214 581)

Net effect on Statement of Financial Performance  - 

26.3 A calculation error of R10 859 was committed between Inventory and Accumulated surpluses in the Annual 
Financial Statements for the year 2010/11. This has subsequently been rectified and has affected the Financial 
Statements as follows:

31 March 2011

Statement of Financial Position

Decrease in Inventory  (10 859)

Decrease in Accumulated surplus  10 859 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Position  - 

31 March 2011

Statement of Financial Performance

Increase in Stock variance expense  (10 859)

Decrease in surplus for the year  10 859 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Performance  - 
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26.4 Depreciation on Leasehold Improvements that was calculated over an incorrect useful life.

31 March 2011

statement of Financial performance
Increase in depreciation of Leasehold Improvements  (30 186)

Decrease in surplus for the year  30 186 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Performance  - 

statement of Financial position
Decrease in Leasehold Improvements  (30 186)

Decrease in accumulated surplus  30 186 

Net effect on Statement of Financial Position  - 

Subtotal in surpluses as at 31 March  2011  4 050 973 

27. chanGe in compaRative amounts
personnel expenses/administration expenses
A reclassification of Staff welfare and refreshments, Staff training, Workmen's compensation and Recruitment of 
staff from Personnel expenses to Administrative expenses. 

statement of Financial performance
Administrative Expenses  (refer note 7)  685 954 

Personnel Expenses (refer note 10)  (685 954)

Cash flow Statement
Receipts on Cash flow Statement is affected by the reclassification of  Non-Exchange revenue, prior year error 
of Inter departmental transport hire and Interest paid. The effect was as follows:

Receipts (Non-exchange revenue)  6 132 912 

Receipts (Inter Dept Transport Hire)  (214 581)

Payments on Cash flow Statements is affected by reclassification of Employee expenses and Administrative 
expenses. The effect was as follows

Employee costs  (685 954)

Suppliers  685 954 

notes to the annUal finanCial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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statement of Financial position
Some Leasehold Improvements were erroneously depreciated over incorrect period. The error has subsequent-
ly been rectified and had the following effect:

PPE  21 187 

Accumulated surpluses  (21 187)

Financial instruments
Financial Liabilities
Income received in advance was incorrectly included in financial liabilities  1 547 243 

Financial Assets
Prepayments and deposits were incorrectly included in financial assets  418 417 

28. Financial instRuments
The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk 
and liquidity risk

The entity has developed a comprehensive risk strategy in terms of Treasury Regulation 28.1 in order to monitor 
and control these risks. Internal Audit function reports quarterly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee, 
an independent body that monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures. The risk manage-
ment process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

28.1 liquidity risk
The entity manages liquidity risk by reviewing the bank and cash balances on a daily basis. The entity has suf-
ficient resources to meet its short-term obligations. All bank accounts are held with reputable banking institutions

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table 
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Restated
Less than one year
Trade and other payables  3 921 289  4 387 264 

Finance lease liability  163 540  163 540 

Between one to 5 years
Finance lease liability  109 027  272 566 
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Restated

28.2 credit risk
Credit risk relates to potential exposure on trade receivables. At year-end, the entity did not consider there to 
be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had not been adequately provided for. There is no security 
pledged on trade debtors and cash and cash equivalents.

the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date:
Carrying amount:

Cash and cash equivalents  21 867 652  15 620 462 

Trade receivables  798 178  1 278 448 

Total  22 665 831  16 898 910 

28.3 interest rate risk
All financial instruments attract interest at rates linked directly to the prime bank overdraft rate. The effective 
interest rate used by the entity is the prime interest rate.

the company's exposure to interest rate risk at reporting date:

assets
Cash and cash equivalents  21 867 652  15 620 462 

Trade receivables from exchange transactions  798 178  1 278 448 

Total financial assets  22 665 831  16 898 910 

liabilities
Trade payables from exchange transactions  3 496 735  2 840 021 

Total financial liabilities  3 496 735  2 840 021 

28.4 interest sensitivity analysis
As the entity has no significant interest risk exposure at financial year end, the effect of a 1% strengthening or 
weakening of the prime interest rate at balance sheet date is not considered material.

28.5 aging analysis

year ended 31 march 2012  Gross amount  Gross amount 
Current: 0-30 days  240 154  450 166 
Past due: 31-60 days  34 707  341 156 
More than 90 days  1 155 558  949 195 
total  1 430 420  1 740 517 

 impairment 
loss 

 impairment 
loss 

Impairment loss  1 153 065  932 159 
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Restated

28.6 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
year ended 31 march 2012
assets
Cash and cash equivalents (loans and receivable)  21 867 652  15 620 462 
Trade receivables from exchange transactions (loans and receivable)  798 178  1 278 448 
Total financial assets  22 665 831  16 898 910 

liabilities
Trade payables from exchange transactions (financial liability at 
amortised cost)  3 496 735  2 840 021 
Total financial liabilities  3 496 735  2 840 021 

28.7 Maturity profile
year ended 31 march 2012
assets
Cash and cash equivalents  21 867 652  15 620 462 
Trade receivables from exchange transactions  798 178  1 278 448 
Total financial assets  22 665 831  16 898 910 

liabilities
Trade payables from exchange transactions  3 496 735  2 840 021 
Total financial liabilities  3 496 735  2 840 021 

29. iRReGulaR eXpendituRe
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening Balance  -  7 068 555 
Irregular expenditure - current year  1 205 620  8 810 367 
Irregular expenditure identified in the current year relating to the prior year  358 092 
Irregular expenditure condoned  -  (15 878 922)
Transfer to receivables for recovery  - 
irregular expenditure awaiting condonement  1 563 712  - 
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29. iRReGulaR eXpendituRe (cont.)
analysis of irregular expenditure

incident
disciplinary steps taken/ 
criminal proceedings

Expenditure incurred without applying 
the preferential points system to all pro-
curement of goods and services above 
R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of 
the Preferential Policy Framework Act, 
2000(ActNo.5 of 2000)

No disciplinary steps taken - 
the matter taken to council for 
condonement.

 847 527 -
Insurance contract extended without ob-
taining the required number of quotations 
for 2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years

No disciplinary steps taken - 
the matter taken to council for 
condonement.  716 185 -

 1 563 712 -

30. FRuitless and WasteFul eXpendituRe
Reconciliation of Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening Balance  -  - 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the year  123 186  491 594 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure condoned  (491 594)

Transfer to receivables for recovery

Fruitless expenditure awaiting condonement  123 186  - 

incident
disciplinary steps taken/ 
criminal proceedings

SARS Penalties and interest paid 
on unpaid PAYE, UIF and Skills 
levy for the financial year 2010/11

The disciplinary process has been 
completed and the matter awaits 
council condonement.  67 285 -

Advertisement for the position of 
the CEO retracted and readvertised

No disciplinary hearing and the 
matter awaits council condonement  55 901 -

 123 186 -

31. commitments
capital expenditure
The South African State Theatre has the following future commitments:

Property, plant and equipment
Purchase of security x-ray machine from Fire Busters  206 739 -
Purchase of lighting profiles from Muthiyane  204 992 -

 411 731 -

32. events subseQuent to balance sheet date
There were no adjusting events that came to the attention of the Council.
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33. continGent liability
There is currently a discussion between SAST and South African Ballet Theatre (SABT) relating to SAST not 
honouring a possible obligation to avail Opera Theatre for an annual ballet event. The value of the obligation is 
under discussion and currently cannot be accurately determined.



Many of our special projects would not be possible without our partners. 
We are proud to have worked with the following partners during 2011/2012 
and look forward to lasting relationships during the next financial year.

Department of Arts and Culture Embassy of the United States of America

Opera Africa Department of Science and Technology

Embassy of India Computicket

Teamwork Productions, India Morning Star Express Hotel

The Black Tie Ensemble City of Tshwane

Liquid Chefs National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund 

Southern Sun Hotels

Partners
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